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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

| am delighted to report a year of outstanding achievement in 2012 by ABC International Bank plc
("ABCIB”)  In terms of total operating income and profit before tax, the Bank reached all-time
record high levels, whilst keeping costs under contral and expanding its business in all areas Full
detaiis of these results are contained in the Chief Executive Officer’s report and Business Review

This performance 1s even more noteworthy when one considers the continuing political and
economic turmoil that affected some of the Bank’s key markets in the Middle East and North Africa
("MENA”") region 1n 2012 Some progress towards normality was seen in the three MENA markets
most affected by the events of 2011 {Egypt, Libya and Tumisia) but the process of establishing peace,
electing new governments and restoring normal economic activity will take some time  [n Syria, we
still see an unresolved conflict, which 15 affecting sentiment in the wider Levant region
Nevertheless, MENA s still an area with good business opportunities for the Bank and with
significant potential for the future when stability returns This 1s particularly relevant to Libya, where
ABCIB saw trade flows restored in early 2012 as the country began to rebuild after the 2011 conflict
The Bank’s long track record in the Libyan market, allied to the shareholding links of ABC Group with
the country, puts ABCIB In a strong position to support the renaissance of the country through trade
finance, project finance and, in line with Libyan government policy, through Islamic financial
services

In the wider international arena, we saw economic uncertainty and recessienary conditions
continuing to impact Europe in 2012 This affected the banking and corporate sectors, creating
concerns for bankers gver country risk and the creditworthiness of individual obligors However,
ABCIB's focus on exporting companies and contractors enabled 1t to continue to grow i1ts European
business, as exporters responded to steady demand from the MENA region and other growing
markets However, challenges remain for all bankers in creating sustainable growth 1n 2013, aganst
the background of continuing volatility, both economic and political, in many parts of the world

2012 was a year in which we saw many international banks, both large and small, fined or censured
for breaches of sanctions, money-laundering offences or for other serious control fallures This has
created an unhealthy public mistrust of the banking system and an impression of low moral
standards in that context, | want to make it clear that ABCIB maintains high standards of risk
management and compliance on all transactions it undertakes All relevant international sanctions
are observed and the Bank places great emphasis on ensuring that regulatory and legal
requirements are met in full This I1s particularly important, given the background of volatiity in
some of the Bank’s core business markets The Bank has a cautious risk strategy but benefits from
the long history of ABC Group operating in the MENA region and the expertise this provides ABCIB
has a proud record of supporting trade flows and other financial transactions between Europe and
MENA and maintains an ethical approach to its business, supporting parties on both sides of these
transactions

On the regulatory front, ABCIB continued to meet fully the requirements of the FSA and all other
relevant regulators The regulatory landscape was relatively stable in 2012 and the Bank has started
preparations for the requirements of the Basel Il regulations and for the change in structure of the
FSA into two separate regulatory bodies in 2013

The Board of Directors 1s comfortable that the capital adequacy and hiquidity position of ABCIB 1s
sound and that the asset quality of the Bank 1s good The Directors remain confident that ABCIB has
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adequate resources and management skills to pursue its business plan successfully in 2013 and
beyond The financial position of ABCIB 1s good and the parent Bank injected an additional £30
million of Tier 1 capital into ABCIB in December 2012, to fund continued expansion of the business
and maintain healthy capital ratios This 1s a tangible demonstration of how ABCIB benefits from
financial and business support from its parent Bank In addition, the Bank enjoys a very close
business relationship with the major shareholders of Arab Banking Corporation (BSC) (“ABC”)
Accordingly, the Directors have no hesitation in adopting the going concern basis in prepanng the
annual report and accounts

During the year, the Bank made significant investment in development of the skills of its people
Training has always been an important matter in ABCIB but, in 2012, the Bank participated in three
major ABC Group initiatives to improve skills a “Cnitical Role Competency Analysis” was undertaken
on key functions and jobholders, a leadershtp development programme was introduced, and an
extensive credit risk traning scheme was implemented for personnel involved in business
generation, as well as those in specialist risk functions These initiatives will continue in 2013

Full details of the Board of Directors are shown on page 5. On 10" July 2012, Mr William Playle, the
Chief Executive Officer of the Bank, was elected to the Board and was appointed as Managing
Director There were no other changes in the memberships of the Board or its Commuttees

ABCI8 Group had 189 permanent employees as at 31st December 2012 | want to thank the
management and staff of the Bank for their dedication and hard work in delivering record results
this year, and | also thank the Board of Directors and Shareholders for their guidance and continued
support

ABCIB did not declare nor pay a dividend in 2012
It 1s ABCIB’s policy to pay its supplhers within the agreed period from the date of their invoice

None of the Directors had an interest in ABCIB shares during 2012, and no option to purchase shares
has been granted to any Director

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO THE AUDITOR

The Directors confirm that

There 15 no relevant information of which ABCIB’s auditors are unaware, and they have taken all
reasonable steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
information, and to establish that the auditor i1s aware of that information

RE-APPOINTMENT OF AUDITOR

In accordance with Section 487 (2) of the Compames Act 2006, a resolution is to be proposed at the
Annual General Meeting for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as auditor of ABCIB

(\/souw\u
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Board of Directors

HASSAN ALI JUMA

BRC* # oo

Chairman of the Board

Fellow of the Chartered Institute of

Management Accountants (FCMA), U K

Mr Juma was appointed as Chairman of the Board of Directors of
ABCIB on 11* March 2011, pnor to which he served as a director
from 2001 -2008 and as Deputy Chairman from 2008-2011 Mr
luma has been President & Chief Executive of ABC since 1% Apnil
2008 He previously served as Chief Executive Officer of National
Bank of Bahrain (“NBB"} from 1984 and Managing Director of NBB
from 1997 He was formerly Chawrman of Bahrain
Telecommumications Company and Ummiah Mobile Company,
Jordan and a director of Nationa! Bank of Bahrain Mr luma has
been a Director of ABC since 1994 and 15 also Chairman of Arab
Banking Corporation — Egypt (S A E ), Chairman of Arab Banking
Corporation — {lordan) and Chairman of Arab Financial Services
Company BSC {c) Mr Juma has more than 36 years expenence in
Commercial Banking

ABDULLAH SAUD AL HUMAIDHI

ACRC* CACH# oo

Deputy Chairman of the Board

Mr Al Humaidhi was appointed to ABCIB Board of Directors in
2008 and as Deputy Chawrman on 11th March 2011 Mr Al
Humaidhi 15 also Chairman and Managing Director of Commercial
Facihties Company, Kuwart, Member of the Board and the
Executive Committee of Kuwart !nvestment Authority and Vice
Chairman of the Public Institution for Social Security, a director of
the Board of First National Bank $ AL, Lebanon and a Member of
the Board of Kuwait Chamber of Commerce & Industry Mr Al
Humaidhi, who has also been a director of ABC since 2001, has
over 25 years expenence in banking and investment

HILAL MISHARI AL MUTAIRI

BRC CAC* # oo

Director

Mr AL Mutair was appointed as a director of ABCIB in 2001 Mr Al
Mutain also serves as Deputy Charman of Arab Banking
Corporation {BSC} and 15 a director of Kuwait Investment
Authority His previous offices include First Vice Chairman, Kuwait
Chamber of Commerce & Industry, Minister of Trade and Industry
of Kuwait, General Manager of Kuwart Investment Company and
Chairman of Kuwait Clearing Company Mr AL Mutain has more
than 36 years of commercial and financial industry experience

DAVID THOMAS R. CARSE, OBE

AC*BRCRCt#

Director

Mr Carse was appointed as an independent director of ABCIB in 2007
and also serves as Chairman of the Audit Committee and a Member of
the Board Risk and Remuneration Committees Mr Carse 15 also a Non-
Executive director of CAF Bank Limited and formerly served as Deputy
Cheef Executive of Hong Kong Monetary Authority and was the Director
General of lersey Financial Services Commussion Mr Carse has a
banking career that spans over 40 years

FLORENCE HADI EID

BRCCACH#I

Director

Ph D, Organisation Economics, Massachusetts Inst of Technology

Ms Ed was appointed to the Board of ABCIB in 2010 as an
independent director Ms Eid 1s the Founder & CEO of Arabia Monitor,
a research adwvisory firm focused on MENA and sits in the Board of
Trustees of the American University in Paris Formerly, Ms Eid worked
at the World Bank and currently holds a number of wisiting
professorships at INSEAD and HEC, Paris

ANGUS GILLIES MACLENNAN

ACRC #{

Director

Mr Maclennan was appointed as independent director of ABCIB in
2010 Mr Maclennan 1s also the Charrman of the Advisory Board,
Institute of Risk Standards & Qualifications, Chairman of An Teallach
Energy Company Limited, Vice Chairman and director of the Eve Appeal
Ltd and Senior Independent director of Vocalink Holdings ple Mr
MacLennan has had a banking career that spans over 35 years

WILLIAM PLAYLE

ABCIB, Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer 1s an attendee at
the following board committees BRC, AC, RC, CAC

Mr Playle was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of ABCIB in january
2012 Previously, he served as Deputy CEO since October 2011 and
Head of Risk Management since May 2002

Mr Playle 15 also a director on the Board of the Arab Bankers’
Association UK Prior to joining ABCIB, Mr Playle occupled semor
positions with Sanwa International ple, as Chief Credit Officer, and
Barclays Caprtal, as director and Head of Credit Risk Management Mr
Playle has extensive Business, Risk and General Management
experience across various banking sectors that spans over 35 years

DAVID THOMAS HOLDEN

Company Secretary

Barnister-at-Law {Lincoln’s Inn)

Mr David Holden joined the Legal department of ABCIB as a lawyer
in 1994 Prior to this he had been assistant lecturer (Martre
Assistant) in Enghsh law at the University of Pans X, Nanterre,
France for four years, following which he qualified at the Bar of
England and Wales and practiced as a barnster in chambers at 3
Paper Buildings, Inner Temple, specialising in commercial and
banking law He became Head of Legal Services at ABCIB in 2002
and was appointed Company Secretary in 2007 He has had 20
years’ experience In the law relating to financial institutions and
banking

AC Member of the Audit Committee
BRC Member of the Board Risk Cornmuttee
RC Member of the Remuneration Commuttee

CAC Member of the Charttable Appeals Committee
* Chairman of Board Committee

# Non-Executive

s Executive

t Independent Director

o

Non-independent Director




CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT & BUSINESS REVIEW
OVERVIEW OF THE YEAR

2012 was a year of remarkable success for the Bank Conditions remained challenging in our core
markets in MENA hut the Bank’s strong business model and diverse customer base, contributed to
achievement of record high levels for a number of key business indicators

Total operating income was a record high of £67 3 million, with net interest income {excluding
equity earnings) contributing £39 5 million and net fee/commission income of £28 4 million  Net
interest income grew by 34%, reflecting the underlying expansion of the Bank’'s asset book
Fee/commission income recovered from the lower levels of 2011, which were mainly caused by
reduced trade finance flows from Libya Net profit before tax for 2012 was a record high of £31 8
million and a retained profit of £27 7 million was added to reserves to improve the Bank’s already
healthy capitahsation

The total assets of the Bank showed steady growth in 2012 from £2,820 million to £3,338 million
Loans and advances rose by 22% to £1,492 million, demonstrating the expansion of the Bank’s
support for its customers in all business areas

The Bank’s liqudity position was consistently positive throughout 2012 and ABCIB was in full
compliance with FSA liquidity rules Capital adequacy remained high, despite the expansion of the
Bank’s asset portfolio, with the year-end capital ratio at 16 5%, and the Tier 1ratio at 15 5%

As set out in the review below, all business areas of the Bank performed well in 2012, with
particularly strong performance in the key product line, Trade Finance The Bank was pleased to
assist the regeneration of Libya, after the troubles of 2011, and a significant volume of new trade
business was handled on behalf of Libyan customers The Bank's long expenence and deep
expertise in the Libyan market enabled us to assist European exporters and Libyan buyers in
restoring trade links Despite weak global trade conditions generally, our relationships with a wide
spectrum of European exporting customers allowed the Bank to capitalise on new business both In
the MENA region and, in some cases, in other developing markets

The renaissance of the Bank’s Islamic Financial Services business continued strongly in 2012 with the
team establishing its expertise and attracting new business from some major, high-profile Islamic
investors In Treasury, good performance was seen, notwithstanding markets that suffered from
Eurozone volatility and government lhiquidity intervention The Project & Structured Finance team
performed ahead of plan, even though the market for new business in the MENA region was
somewhat flat in 2012

In terms of the principal rnisks faced by ABCIB in 1ts activities, the key banking risks are all part of the
business mix from which the Bank derives its earnings The governance of nsk and compliance
1ssues 1s discussed elsewhere In this report in more detail The nature of the Bank’s activities
dictates that credit risk and operational risk are most prominent, whilst market risk i1s less of a
concern, In view of the very hmited trading undertaken by the Bank’s Treasury Considering the
developing nature of the MENA markets in which ABCIB takes a significant proportion of its nisk, the
assessment, management, control and mitigation of risk takes high importance within the Bank
Likewise comphliance issues pose challenges to the Bank and are given priority in transaction
assessment Senior management of the Bank and the Board of Directors pay close attention to risk
and complance 1ssues and the Bank promotes a culture of risk awareness at all levels, including
amongst personnel involved primarily in business generation The Bank has a good track record in
risk and compliance management and a cautious approach to these areas Is central to the Bank's
strategy

Whilst the Bank’'s performance figures tell the positive growth story for ABCIB, this success was hard-
earned and was the result of great efforts by our people at all levels, in both business areas and In
support functions | want to express my thanks to all the personnel of ABCIB, across all its branches
and offices for their important contribution to the Bank’s success in 2012




BUSINESS REVIEW
TRADE FINANCE

The global operating environment remamed rather unsettled in 2012, with performance varying
widely both between and within regions Cur two main areas of operation — the EU and MENA —
proved no exception to this The fragiity of the southern Eurozone continued to cause concern
whilst, within MENA, stresses became apparent in those countries implementing deep political and
economic reform The situation in Syria, meanwhile, deteriorated markedly as the year progressed
Against this challenging background, the Trade Finance team adopted a focused and pro-active
business stance, which paid handsome dividends Strong support for recovering regional markets
such as Libya and Egypt together with robust contnibutions from tradibonal and less volatile
markets, such as Algena and Turkey helped achieve record results, with total operating profit 20%
ahead of 2011 Intensification and streamiining of the working relationship between ABCIB’s
European network and ABC Group entities also helped to produce business opportunities Strategic
efforts to broaden geographical and product coverage continued to provide a valuable
diversification of revenue streams and, against the generally uncertain market environment, results
also benefited to some degree from an added nisk premium element in pricing

All product areas and offices withain Trade Finance successfully navigated the difficult operating
environment in 2012 to contribute to the unit’s record outturn Overall, the business continued to
build sts market share and reputation, furthering ABCIB's strategic aim of becoming the ‘Bank of
choice’ for companies undertaking business with the MENA region

Whilst continuing to offer a full range of traditional trade finance products, success in the marketing
and provision of recewables financing services ~ including to a number of iconic, globally renowned
exporting groups — once again made a noteworthy contrnibution to profits A decision to expand the
Commodities team also yielded positive results over the year, producing a significant increase In
business volumes, particularly in soft commodity financing During the year a strategic decision was
made to expand Trade Finance’s geographical footprint by establishing a dedicated desk within the
Bank’s sister operation, Banco ABC Brasil, to specifically market the trade finance product range to
Brazihan companies trading with MENA  As a result, important new opportunities for financing soft
commodity exports to the MENA region have already arnisen Throughout all the various business
activities, the ability to respond flexibly and indwvidually tardor products to chents’ needs,
incorporating msurance solutions and other structural nsk mitigants as and when appropnate,
continued to prove a major competitive advantage

For a second successive year, the activittes of the Risk Distribution team have resulted 1n more than
USD1 bilhion of assets being sold into the secondary market All areas of Trade Finance benefited
from the team’s activities which have allowed a more seamless matching of avallable financial
resources to chent’s business needs, whilst at the same time providing the Bank with a valuable
degree of operational nsk matigation  Building on the team’s successful track record and market
knowledge, a Secondary Loans Unit was established during the year with a view to opportunistically
invest and trade secondary market loans — many linked to the MENA region — and the unit has
already begun to provide a useful degree of diverssfication to Trade Finance’s traditional income
streams




ISLAMIC FINANCIAL SERVICES

2012 was a buoyant year for Islamic Financial Services (“IFS"), having originated, structured and
distributed in excess of USS 700 million of new Islamic finance transactions in the UK and Turkey
The core of the IFS business madel 1s to provide Islamic banking solutions to UK, Arab World and
European customers, financing niche opportunities, focusing on real estate finance, leasing and
corporate finance activities

As a result of the turmoll in the Arab World 1n 2011/12, IFS benefited from an increased transfer of
capital from GCC investors seeking security in the central London property market In 2012, IFS
onginated, structured and acted as the investment agent for a number of large commercial and
residential development projects in pnme central London with a total value In excess of USS 500
millon  As consequence of these deals, IFS has also, for the first time, utilised the ABC Group'’s
Shariah comphant dernivative products (Tabdeel profit rate SWAP and Mua'wama foreign exchange
hedge) I[FS also continues to provide relationship-driven Islamic mortgage finance to high net worth
investors, helping them acquire property, either as an investment or for their personal use

Turkey remains a core market for IFS and in 2012 IFS, working alongside the Bank’s Turkish office,
continued to originate, structure and distribute Islamic finance to Turkish corporates In 2012, the
total value of Turkish assets booked and distributed to Islamic investors exceeded USS$ 200 million

PROJECT & STRUCTURED FINANCE

The Bank’s Project & Structured Finance Europe Team {“P&SF”) maintained steady progress toward
developing new business opportunities in MENA markets and core sectors Activity included the
refinancing of a major real estate development in Libya, and providing a structured finance solution
for a major North Africa corporate in the petrochemical sector, both of which demonstrate good
recovery from the upheavals of 2011 in the Arab World

ABCIB remains very selective in what opportunities to pursue in the region, but there are clearly
significant prospects, particutarly in the re-emergent Libyan market, which we have been monitoring
carefully throughout 2012 We also have recently undertaken a major advisory assignment in the
telecom sector with a dominant regional operator which will generate revenue in the coming year
2012 more generally saw a significant recovery 1in enquiry levels for our advisory and structuring
skulls across the region, in core sectors such as o1l and gas and selectively in certain MENA real estate
projects

TREASURY

ABCIB’s Treasury operations, including those of the European branches, are centralised in London
with hiquidity and risk run solely from this centre The Treasury 1s part of the Bahrain and London
twin-hub approach for Global Treasury management in the ABC Group. The twin-hub approach has
helped to strengthen relationships with finanoal institutions and customers through coordinated
calling programmes and regular interaction, enabling Treasury to leverage its expertise in asset and
hability management Treasury aims to provide a customer focused service, whilst some trading
activity I1s conducted in money markets and foreign exchange

Treasury continues to be focused on managing the Bank’s iquidity position and, whenever possible,
extending the tenors of money market deposits The Bank’s deposit base continues to provide a
very stable source of funding When not used for funding our commercial assets, any excess
hiquidity 1s lent into the money markets for short term periods to creditworthy institutions at
competitive market rates ABCIB remains fully comphant with the FSA’s liquidity regime and
maintains a hquidity buffer portfolio of US Treasuries, UK Gilts and funds deposited at the European
Central Bank




In terms of business results, Treasury has performed extremely well during the year with profits
again increasing year on year The Bank’s Money Market hooks were well positioned at the start of
2012 to benefit from the low interest rate environment in all the major currencies Foreign
Exchange dealing has grown, as the Bank’s major Libyan counterparties returned to the international
markets 1n 2012 Treasury continued to work closely with other business units of ABCIB to gain
deposits, foreign exchange and dervative business from the Bank’s customer base

THE YEAR AHEAD

Trade prospects look brnight for 2013 A broader-based global recovery 1s increasingly expected and
MENA seems hkely to benefit from still relatively buoyant oul price levels and — Syria apart — from the
positive results of developing reforms in transitional states

In strategic terms, the Bank remains committed to its mission of providing a qualty service as a
European-based financial institution delivering expertise in the MENA region The Bank intends to
capitalise on its firmly established reputation as a pro-active supporter of trade flows to the region
and will continue to explore opportunities for expanding both geographical and product coverage
Management will remain focused on the development of the key business hnes, supporting existing
customers and seeking new opportunities There are already promising signs that 2013 will be
anather year of growth for the Bank

)

1 5 FEB 2013

Wilham J Playle

Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board 1s collectively responsible for determining that ABCIB is managed in such a way as to
ensure a proper balance between short term objectives and the achievement of long term value
The Board sets ABCIB's strategic aims, values and standards and its directors are tasked with taking
decisions objectively and acting in a way which they consider, in good faith, will promote the success
of ABCIB for the benefit of its stakeholders as a whole As well as carrying out its statutory duties and
regulatory accountabilities, the Board ensures that ABCIB's management is capably executing its
responsibilities, regularly momitoring and challenging the effectiveness of management policies and
decisions including the execution of its strategies The Board adheres to its statement of Corporate
Governance Principles and Guidance which 1s regularly reviewed and 1s informed by the prevailing
Corporate Governance Code in the UK and the Corporate Governance Charter of the Central Bank of
Bahrain The Board conducts an annual performance assessment of itself by questionnaire which 1s
reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board The Board met on seven occasions during 2012

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEES

The Board has three principal committees, the Board Risk Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee which are descnibed in more detail below

The Management Committee {(“MANCOM”) 1s the highest-level management decision-making
committee of ABCIB, reporting through the Chief Executive Officer to the Board of Directors The
Assets and Liabihties Committee (“ALCO"}, and the Information Technology Steering Committee
(“ITSC") are the principal committees reporting to MANCOM ALCO s chaired by the Chief Executive
Officer and it focuses on the funding of ABCIB’s assets, iquidity, interest rates, trading risks, and the
investment of ABCIB’s capital ITSC, chaired by the Head of Operations, oversees enhancements to
ABCIB’s core IT and communications systems

BOARD RiSK COMMITTEE

The Board Risk Committee {“BRC”} 1s chaired by Mr Hassan Juma and three other non-executive
directors sit on this committee Mr Hassan Juma is also the President and Chief Executive of ABC
Group, and member of the ABC Group BRC and the ABC Group Audit Committee

The BRC meets at least three times per year and has overall responsibility for nisk policy, within the
parameters set for the ABC Group its responsibilities include setting and reviewing all nisk policies
and reviewing ABCIB's nisk strategy and risk appetite, return expectations and asset allocation imits,
principally in terms of country, industry, ratings and tenor  BRC oversees all classes of nisk, including
credit risk, market nsk and operational nsk  BRC reviews nisk levels m relation to individual
borrowers/counterparties, industry sectors, countries, regions and products The Committee also
sets market risk and trading hmits and parameters for investment portfolios and trading It
delegates authority to senior management to conduct business within the terms of the risk strategy
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee meets at least four times a year to give the Board of Directors an independent
assessment of the adequacy of ABCIB’s policies on internal and external financial reporting, controls
and comphance The Committee 1s chaired by Mr Dawvid Carse ABCIB has an estabhshed internal
audit function, with the Head of Internal Audit reporting jointly to the Chawrman of the Audit
Committee and to the ABC Group Chief Internal Auditor A risk-based audit approach 1s adopted
which ensures that key risk areas are reviewed and assessed regularly They include lending activity
and the credit process, IT systems and support functions Where necessary, this work is carried out
in coordination with ABC Group Audit and external specialists

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee 1s chaired by Mr Abdullah Al-Humaidhi, who 15 also Chairman of the
Compensation Committee of the parent Bank ABC The committee meets at least four times a year
to review the Bank’s compensation policy and the overall remuneration of ABCIB’s senior managers
The committee Is constituted in a way to exercise competent and independent judgement on the
remuneration practices of the Bank, taking into account the implications for the risk management of
the Bank, its capital and hquidity The committee 1s respansible for ensuring that ABCIB complies
with the FSA Remuneration Code, introduced in December 2010

RISK MANAGEMENT

All areas of risk fall under the management and control of the ABCIB Head of Risk Management, who
reports jointly to the Chairman of the BRC and to the ABCIB CEQ There 1s also a functional reporting
hne to the ABC Group Chief Credit & Risk Officer Currently the Head of Risk role 1s vacant and the
risk management duties are carned out by the senior functional managers within the team (the
Head of Credit, the Head of Operational Risk and the Head of Regulatory Risk) The Risk
Management Department 1s overseen both by the ABC Group Chief Credit & Risk Officer and by one
of ABCIB Deputy Chief Executive Officers, who 1s Acting Head of Risk Management until the role I1s
filled permanently

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk 1s managed by the Credit Committee (“IBCC”), which Is the main credit risk decision-
making forum of ABCIB Chaired by the ABCIB Acting Head of Risk Management, IBCC members
include the Chief Executive Officer, Deputy Chief Executive Officers and the ABC Group Chief Credit
& Risk Officer 1BCC credit decisions are overseen by the BRC

The ABCIB credit policies and procedures govern all aspects of the credit nisk process, including nisk
approval and control All credit apphcations from ABCIB’s business units and branches are reviewed
by the Risk Management Department in London and approved (or otherwise) by the IBCC and, |f
required, by the parent Bank’s Credit Committee All hmits, including those for Banks and sovereign
entities, are subject to an assessment of ali relevant risk factors at least annually
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The treatment of large exposures and provisions for doubtful loans are governed by ABCIB's Large
Exposure Policy Statement and 1ts Credit Risk Provisioning Policy, both approved by the BRC Where
monies are overdue (as defined by the policy document), or where there 1s doubt that they wili be
received by ABCIB, all loans to that customer are automatically placed onto a non-accrual basis
unless a specific exemption 1s given by the IBCC The carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liabiity 1s adjusted if ABCIB revises its estimates of payments or receipts The adjusted
carrying amount s calculated based on the oniginal effective interest rate and the change in carrying
amount s recorded as interest Income or expense

The quality of the risk portfolio i1s considered to be good, reflecting a conservative risk approach in
recent years The weighted average nisk rating of ABCIB’s risk asset book 1s equivalent to investment
grade ABCIB's non-performing loans fell shghtly from £8 4 million at the end of 2011 to £8 million
at the end of 2012 Specific provisions at year-end amounted to £6 5 million representing 81% of
loans classified by the Bank as “doubtful” We remain comfortable with the coverage level taking
Into account collateral held

ABCIB has prudent policies and procedures to build up reserves against possible losses in the asset
portfolio Specific prowisions are in place to deal with exposures classified as impaired or where
losses are expected In addition, ABCIB maintains a collective i/mpairment reserve to cover an
identified part of the portfolio where observable data indicates that impairment may have occurred
even though there 1s not yet any specific evidence of impairment of any individual loan within that
group of assets This reserve stood at £2 million at year-end

LIQUIDITY RISK

ABCIB's approach to managing liquidity risk, and the responsibilities of management, are covered in
the Bank’s Liguidity Policy, which has been written in line with the revised FSA rules for hiquidity
implemented dunng 2010 Liquidity risk 1s managed closely, with daily monitoring and stress testing
to ensure adequacy of funding and a buffer of hquidity on hand During the market turmoil in recent
years, ABCIB successfully positioned itself to maintain a surplus of funding and had no need to resort
to emergency measures This demonstrates the robust management of hquidity in the Bank and the
strong relationship with key depositors

MARKET RISK, OPERATIONAL RISK, AND OTHER RISK

ABCIB uses the Value at Risk [“VaR”) method of nisk management of currency, interest rate and
traded credit exposures on a datly basis All market nisk 15 managed in London and overseen on a
global basis by ABC Bahrain The Head of Risk Management, the Head of Treasury and the Head of
Internal Controls review the level of market risk every day and all treasury counterparty risks are
monitored on a real-time basis Treasury operations are governed by the Trading Book Policy
Statement

Derivative nstruments are used by ABCIB as hedges against the risk of treasury losses from
mismatches (in maturities, interest rates and currencies in relation to the asset and habihty base
Contracts for futures, forward rate agreements, and interest rate and currency swap agreements are
most commonly used to this effect Any open positions are relatively small and are re-valued on a
regular basis Trading on the spot and forward foreign exchange markets is mainly chient driven
Trading is kept within a modest VaR limit and other market risk parameters, as determined by ALCO
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Operational risk 1s managed by the Head of Risk Management and the Head of Operational Risk
ABCIB has an operational risk framework in place with recording of nsks and controls and loss data
capture A full assessment of operational nsks and controls for every business umit, branch and
support department is carried out and updated annually

Documentary and legal risk 1s managed by the effective use of ABCIB's internal counsel and external
advisors

COMPLIANCE

ABCIB's Compliance Policy Framework as approved by the Board of Directors 1s subject to regular
review The Bank apples a risk-based approach to comphance with resource and effort
appropnately focused in areas of higher nsk The Head of Comphance and Bank Money Laundering
Reporting Officer (“MLRO”) reports to the Deputy Chief Executive Officer and the Board and 15 a
member of MANCOM and a co-opted attendee of the Audit Committee Comphance policies and
procedures, including those concerning money-laundering prevention and sanctions, conform to FSA
and other relevant regulatory/legal requirements The European branch General Managers have
responstbility over local matters of regulatory complance, mcluding that of money laundering
prevention and sanctions in accordance with the Bank’s Compliance Policy Framework and local laws
and regulations Each European branch has the support of a local MLRO reporting jointly to the
branch General Manager and the Head of Comphance and Bank MLRO
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applhicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under
that law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice} Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank and of the profit or
loss of the company for that period In preparing these financial statements, the directors are
required to

¢ Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
s Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

e State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the finanoal statements, and

* Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropnate to
presume that the Bank will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show
and explain the Bank’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Bank and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Bank and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The Directors have responsibility for the maintenance and integrity of the Annual Report and

Accounts as they appear on the Bank’s website Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of the financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictron
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ABC INTERNATIONAL BANK PLC

We have audited the financial statements of ABC International Bank plc (“the Bank™) for the year
ended 31 December 2012, which comprise the Profit and Loss Account, the Balance Sheet, the
Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses and the related notes 1 to 44. The financial
reporting framework that has been appled in their preparation 1s applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

This report 1s made solely to the company’'s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state
to the company’'s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’'s report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibiity to anyone other than the Bank and the Bank's members as a body, for our audit
work, tor this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Director’'s Responsibilities Statement set out on page 14, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view. Cur responsibility Is to audit and express an opinion on the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's
Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of:
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances and have been
consistently applhied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In
addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Directors' Report, the Chief
Executive Officer's Report & Business Review and the Corporate Governance and Risk
Management review to identify matenial inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If
we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
imphications for our report.

Opinion on the financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements

¢  Give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affars as at 31 December 2012
and of its profit for the year then ended,

e  Have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdem Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, and

e Have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

o
Yy
\“’ b The UK firm Ernst & Yourg LLP1S a tursted habiity
Y] y partnership reqistered in England and Wales with
% 1 5 registered number OC300001 and s 3 member firm of
\‘_ g." Ernst & Young Global Limitea A fist of members names
- 1s avaitable for inspection at 1 Moce Landen Place

London SE1 ZAF the firm's principal ptace of business
INVESTOR IN PEOPLE and registered office
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you If, in our gpinion-:

e Adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

¢ The financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns;
or

e Certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

*  We have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

St=C o (P

Peter Wallace (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

19 February 2013
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ABC international Bank ple
PROFIT AND LOS8 ACCOUNT

For the year ended 31st December 2012

Interast recevable and similar income arnsing from debt

securities and certificates of deposit purchased

Other interest recevable

Interest payable
Not Interest Income

Fees and commissions recewable

Fees and commissions payable

Dealing profits

{Loss)/ Profit on sale of Investment securities

Other operating income
Total operating income
Administrative expenses

Depreciation and amortisation

Prowisions (net)

Profit on ordinary actlvitles before tax

Tax charge on ordinary activities

Profit for the financial year

The results for the years ended 31st December 2012 and 31st December 2011 are derived from continuing operations

17

Notes

kY

39

2012 2011
£000 £000
6,205 7,423

59,245 50,767
65,450 58,190
(25,937) (28,680)
39,513 29,510
39,164 33,193
{10,797) (9,840)

336 311
(2,253) 5,057
1,321 1,944

27,771 30,665
67,284 60,175
(40,011) (35,235)
(445) (352)
4,962 (4,041)
{35,494) (39,628)
34,790 20,547
{4,066) (3,239)
27,724 17,308

ABC international Bank plc - Annual Report 2012



ABGC International Bank plc
BTATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

For the year ended 31st December 2012

Profit for the financial year
Actuanal loss recognised on defined benefit pension scheme
Deferred tax credit relating to pension schemes

Change i fair value of available for sale investments and loans and advances

Corporation tax relating to change in farr value of available for sale
investments and loans and advances

Total recogniasad profits since last annual report

18

Notes

43

3
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2012 2011
£000 £000
27,724 17,308
(3,287) (3.757)
481 575
17,311 (6.229)
(2,648) 1,036
39,701 8,933




ABC Intarnational Bank ple Registration No 2564490
BALANCE SHEET
As at 31st December 2012

Notes 2012 2011
£000 £000
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 70,228 61,192
Cenrtificates of deposit purchased 10 31,140 120,000
Due from banks 12 955,140 831,188
Loans and advances to customers 13 1,492,192 1,223,504
Financial nvestments - available-for-sale 17 362,774 474 614
Tangible fixed assets 20 1,052 978
Deferred tax asset 21 11,335 7.971
Other assets 22 79,476 55,040
Prepayments and accrued income 23 54,796 45,557
Total assets 3,338,133 2,820,044
Liabilities
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 24 2,422,055 1,831,184
Deposits from customers 25 261,015 188,139
Other habilities 26 68,374 58,447
Accruals and deferred income 27 21,239 11,682
Term borrowing 28 59,455 303,062
Pension scheme liability 43 5,814 3,583
2,837,952 2396107
Subordinated habilities 29 114,626 107,921
Called up share capital 30 212,296 182,296
Profit and loss account 175,421 153,193
Farr value reserve {2,162) (19,473)
Equity shareholders' funds 3 385,555 316,016
Capital resources 500,181 423,937
Total liabilities and shareholders’ funds 3,338,133 2,820,044
MEMORANDUM ITEMS
Contingent Labilities
Acceptances and endorsements 40,629 38,122
Guarantees and letters of credit 1,744,265 1,246,097
1,784,894 1,284,219
Commitments
Other commitments 33 282,649 203,203

Voeos 20

(\/

an
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1. Acgounting policles

1.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of ABC International Bank plc ("ABCIB") are prepared under the historical cost convention except for available-for-sale investments and derivative
financial assets and liabilities that have been measured at farr value The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 relating to banking
companies, and UK Generally Accepted accounting standards The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those used in the previous financial year

ABCIB 15 not required to prepare group accounts since it gualifies for the exemptions available under Section 402 of the Companies Act 2006 In addition, there 13 no
requirement to prepare a statement of cash flows i accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 1

ABCIB undertakes busimess in several countnes In the MENA regton in which senous social and palitical unrest has occurred over the course of the year ended 31st
Oecember 2012 Whilst the level of unrest and consequent polibcal uncertainty have abated in many of those countnes, ABCIB continues closely to monitor developments and
has taken steps to mitigate any adverse impact on 1ts cperations

At the ime of approval of these financial statements, the Board was satisfied that the capital and liquidity position of ABCIB remained satisfactory, and that ABCIB, with the !
support of the ABC BSC Group, has liquid resources to enable it to meet its obligatrons for the foreseeable future, including its prospective flow of new business

Given all of the above, these financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis

1.2 Significant accounting Judgements and ostimates

In the process of applying ABCIB's accounting policies, management has used iis judgements and made estmates in determining the amounts recognised in the financial
statements The most significant uses of judgements and estmates are as follows

Falr value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial abilities recorded on the balance sheet are mainly denved from observable market data from active markets

Impairment losses on loans and advances

ABCIB reviews its problem loans and advances at each reporting date to assess whether a provision for impaiment should be recorded in the profit and loss account In
particular, judgement by management s required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of prowision reguired Such
estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the provision

In addition to the specific provision against individually significant loans and advances, ABCIB maintans a collective impairment reserve to cover an Wdentified part of the
portfolio where chservable data indicates that wnpairment 1s probable to have occurred even though there 1s not yet any speafic evidence of impanment of any indwdual loan
within that group of assets

Credit facilities subject to collective impairment provisions represent on-balance sheet exposures not subject to specific prowision, with an internal credit nsk rating of 7+ to 10
and with an onginal matunty of more than € months Standard & Poor equivalentrates (1-4= >8BB-, 5-7=B-t0BB-and7- 10 = < BB-)

Impatrment of equity investments i
|

ABCIB treats investmeni secunties as impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below ils cost or where other objective evidence of
impairment exists The determination of what 1s ‘significant’ or *prolenged” requires judgement ABCIB treats 'significant’ generally as 20% or more and 'prolonged’ greater than
8 months In additon, ABCIB evaluates other factors, such as share price volatility where practical

Deferred tax assots

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised
Significant management judgement 15 required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recogrised, based upon the likely timing and leve! of future taxable
profita together with future tax planning strategies In assessing the recoveratulity of deferred tax assets, management considers forecast profits for three years

Pensions

The cost of the defined benefit pension plan 1s determined using actuanal valuations The actuanal valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, expected
rates of retum on assets, mortality rates and future pension increases Due to the long term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertamty See
note 43 for the assumptions used
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1. Accounting policies {continued)
1.3 Summary of significant accounting policles
The pnncipal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are Set out below

&. Forolan currency transiation
Transacbons in foreign currenctes ara inially recorded in the functional currency at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction

Monetary assets and lrabilibes denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date All differences
are taken to 'Other operating income' in the profit and loss acoount

Non-monetary items that are measured at histoncal cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initral transactions except in the
case of non-monetary items that form part of effective hedging relationships which are translated at rates of exchange at the balance sheet date Non-monetary tems
measured at fair value in a foreign curency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the farr value was detemmined

b, Financtal Ingtruments - Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
i) Date of recognition

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or canvention in the marketplace are recognised
on the trade date, 1 e the date ABCIB commts to purchase or sell the asset Denvatives are recognised on a trade date basis

i1} Initial recognition of financial instruments

The classification of financial instruments at inial recogmtion depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were acquired and their charactenstics All financial
Instruments are measured inibally at ther fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not at fair value through profit and loss, any directly attnbutable incremental costs of
acquisition or iIssue

iti) Derivatives recorded at falr value through profit and loss

Denvatives include interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts Denvatives are recorded at fair value and camed as assets when their
farr value 1s positive and as liabiities when ther fair values are negative Changes in the fair value of denvatives held for trading are inciuded in ‘Dealing profits’

iv) Financial assets designated at falr value through profit and loss

Financial assets clagsified in this category are designated by management on initral recognitton when the followang cntena are met
- The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconststent treatment that would otherwise anse from measunng the assets of recognising gains or losses on a
different basis, or

- The assets are part of a group of financial assets which 13 managed and its performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented nsk
management or investment strategy, or

- The financial instrument contains an embedded denvative unless the embedded denvative does not significantly modify the cash flows of itis clear, with little or no
analysis, that it would not be separately recorded

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit and loss are recorded in the balance sheet at farr value Changes In far value are recorded in 'Other operating iIncome'
Interest eamed or incurred Is accrued in interest Income or expense, respectively, according to the terms of the contract, while dividend income 1s recorded 1n *Other operating
ingome® when the nght to the payment has been established

v) Due from banks and loans and advances to customers

*Due from banks' and loans and advances to customers' are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed matunties that are not quoted In an active market
They are not entered ito with the imtention of Immediate or short-term resale and are not classified as 'Financial assets held for trading’, designated as 'Financial investments -
available-for-sale' or ‘Financial assets designated at farr vatue through profit or loss' After iniral measurement, amounts due from banks and loans and advances to

customers are subsequently measured at amortsed cost using the effective interest rate method, less allowance for impairment Amortised cost Is calculated by taking mnto
account any discount or premiurn on acquisiion and fees and costs that are an integral part of the effective Interest rate  The amorbsation 18 included in ‘Interest and similar
income’ in the profit and loss account The losses ansing from impairment are recogrised in the profit and loss aceount in 'Prowsions’

vi) Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial Investments are these which are designated as such or do not qualfy to be classfied as designated at fair value through profit and loss, held to
matunty or loans and advances They include equity instruments, investments in mutual funds and money market and other debt instruments

After inthal measurement, available-for-sale financial Investments are subsequently measured at far value Unrealised gains and losses are recogrised directly in equity In the
‘Available-for-sale reserve’ When a secunty 1s disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously recogmised in equity 18 recognised in the profit and loss account in 'Other
operating income’ Whers ABCIB holds more than one investment in the same secunty, they are deemed to be disposed of on a first-in first-out basis Interest earmed whilst
holding avaable-for-sale financial investments 1s reported as interest income using the effective interest rate Dnvadends eamed whilst holding available-for-sale financial
Investrments are recognised in the profit and loss account as ‘Other operating income’ when the nght to receive payment has been established The losses ansing from
impairment of such investments are recogmised 1n the profit and loss account In ‘Prowisions’ and removed from the avarlable-for-sale reserve

vil) Debt issued and other borrowed funds

Issued financial instruments or their components, which are not designated at fair value through profit or loss are clagsified as liabiities under 'Debt 1ssued and other borrowed
funds', where the substance of the contractual arrangement results in ABCIB having an obligation esther to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder This includes
mainly deposits from banks and other financial institutions, deposits from customers, term borrowing and subordinated Liabiiities

After intbal measurement, debt 1ssued and other borrowangs are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method Amortised cost s
calculated by taking mfo account any discount or premium on the 1ssue and costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate ‘
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1. Accounting policles (continued)

¢. Determination of falr value

The fair value for financial mstruments traded in active markets at the balance sheet data 1s based on ther quoted market price or dealer price quotations (bid pnce for iong
positions and ask pnce for short pesitions), without any deductions for transaction costs

For all other financial instruments. not listed i an active market, the farr value i1s determined by using appropnate valuation techmiques Valuation techniques include net
present value techniques, companson to similar instrurments for which market observable pnces exist, and other relevant valuation models

d. Impalrment of inancial assets

ABCIB assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets 1s impatred A financial asset or a
group of financial assets I1s deemed to be impaired if, and only I, there 1s objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the mitial
recogmition of the asset (an incurred 'loss event) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be refiably estimated Ewidence of impairment may include indications that the bormower ora group of borrowers 18 expenencing significant financial
difficutty, default or delinquency in interest or pancipal payment, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where observable data
indicates that there 1s a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as economic conditions that correlate with defaults

i) Due from banks and loans and advances to customers

For amounts due from banks and Ioans and advances to customers carned at amorbsed cost, ABCIB first assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are Individually significant, or collectively for financral assets that are not individually significant If ABCIB determines that no objective evidence
of impaimment exists for an indwidually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with stmilar credit nsk
charactenstics and collectively assesses them for impairment Assets that are individuzlly assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss 18, or continues to be,
recognised are not Included In a collective assessment of impaiment

If there 3 objective evidence that an impaimment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss 15 measured as the difference between the asset's camying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred) The camying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of a proviston account and the amount of the loss 1s recogrised in the profit and loss account Loans together with the associated allowance are wnitten off when there is
no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to ABCIB If, In a subsequent year the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurming after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impaiment loss 18 increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account [f a future wnte-off 1s later recovered, the recovery 18 credited to 'Provisions’

The present value of the estimated future cash flows (s discounted at the financial asset's onginal effective iInterest rate If a loan has a vanable interest rate, the discount rate
for measuring any impawment loss 1s the current effective interest rate

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of ABCIB's intemal credit grading system that considers credit nsk
charactenstics such as asset type industry, geographical location, collateral type, past-due status and other relevant factors

Future cash flows on a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of histonical loss expenence for assets with credit nsk
characteristics similar to those in the group Histoncal loss expenence 1s adjusted on the basis of cument observable data to refiect the effects of cument conditions that did not
affect the years on which the histoncal loss experience 15 based and to remove the effects of conditions in the histoncal penad that do not exist curently Estimates of changes
in future cash flows reflect, and are directionally consistent wath, changes in related observable data from vear to year The methodology and assumptions used for estimating
future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss expenence

ii) Available-for-sale financial investments

For avaflable-for-sale financial Investments, ABCIB assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that an investment or a group of Investrments 1s
Impaired

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, objective ewidence will include a significant or prolonged decine in the fair value of the investment below its
cost Where thera 15 enidence of impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previousty recognised n the profit and loss account - 1s removed from equity and recognised in the profit and loss accoun! Impairment losses on
equity investments are not reversed through the profit and loss account, and increases in their farr values after impairment are recogrised directly in equity

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale, impairment is assessed based on the same cnitena as financial assets carmed at amortsed cost Interest
continues to be accrued at the onginal effective interest rate on the reduced camrying amount of the asset and 18 recorded as part of 'Interest recevable and similar income
ansing from debt secunties and certificates of deposit purchased' If, in a subsequent year, the farr value of the debt mstrument increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurnng after the iImpairment loss was recognised in the profit and loss account, the impairment loss 1s reversed through the profit and loss account

@. Hedge accounting

ABCIB makes use of dervative instruments to manage exposures to interest rates, foreign currency and credit risks In order to manage parucular ngsks, ABCIB applies hedge
accounting for transactions which meet the specified cntena

At inception of the hedge relationship, ABCIB formally documents the relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, including the nature of the nsk, the
objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge and the method that will be used to assess the effectiveness of the hedging relatonship

Also at the inception of the hedge relationship, a formal assessment 18 undertaken to ensure the hedging instrument 1s expected to be highly effective in offsetting the
destgnated risk In the hedged item The hedges are formally assessed each quarter A hedge s regarded as highly effective if the changes in fair values or cash flows
attnbutable to the hedged nsk dunng the penod for which it 1s designated are expected to offset in a range of 80% to 125%

For designated and qualfying farr value hedges the change in the fair value of a hedging denvative 1s recogrised in the profit and loss account in 'Other operating income'

Meanwhile, the change in the fair value of the hedged item attnbutable to the sk hedged 1s recognised as part of the carrying value of the hedged item and 1s also recogrised
In the profit and loss account in "Other operating income’
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1. Accounting policles {continued)

Falr value hedges

If the hedging instrument expires or 15 scld terminated or exercised, or where the hedge no longer meets the cniteria for hedge accounting the hedge relationship 1s
termiated For hedged items recorded at amorbsed cost, using the effective interest rate method, the difference between the carrying value of the hedged item on termination
and the face value 1s amortised over the term of the original hedge If the hedged item 1s derecogmised, the unamortrsed farr value adjustment is recognised immediately in the
profit and loss account

f. Offactting financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilives are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet if, and only if, there 1s a currently enforceable legal nght to offset the
recognised amounts and there 1S an intention to settie on a net basts, or to realise the asset and settle the lability simultaneously This 1s not generally the case with master
netting agreements, and the related assets and habihes are presented gross in the balance sheet

. Recognition of income and expansa

Revenue 1s recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that the economic benefits will fiow to ABCIB and the revenue can be reliably measured The following specific
recegnition cntena must also be met before revenue 1s recognised

1} Interest and simillar income and expense

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest beanng financial instruments classified as avallable-for-sale financial investments, interest income or
expense 1S recorded at the effective interest rate which 1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter penod where appropnate to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or the financial labiity The calculation takes inte account all contractual
terms of the financial instrument and includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly attnbutable to the instrument and are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
but not future credit losses The camying amount of the financial asset or financial hablity is adjusted if ABCIB rewises its estmates of payments or receipts The adjusted
carmying amount 1s calculated based on the onginal effective inferest rate and the change in carmying amount 1S recorded as interest ncome or expense

Once the recorded value of a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been reduced due to an impairment loss, interest income 1S then recogmised using the
eflective interest rate applied to the new camying amount
il} Fes and commission Income

ABCIE earns fee and commrssion income from a diverse range of services it provides to its customers Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time are
accrued over that penod These fees include commisston income and asset management, custody and other management and advisory fees Loan commitment fees for loans
that are ltkely to be drawn down and other credit related fees are deferred (together with any incremental costs) and recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate
on the loan

iii) Dividend income
Revenue s recognised when ABCIB's nght to receive the payment 1s established

iv) Dealing income

Results ansing from trading actvities include all gains and losses from changes in fair value and related interest income or expense and dividends for financial assets held for
trading Thisincludes any ineffectiveness recorded In respect of hedging transactions

h, Financlal gusrantoes

In the ordinary course of business, ABCIB gives finantial guarantees consisting of letters of credits, guarantees and acceptances Financial guarantees are inibally
recognised in the financial statements at fair value {equivalent to the premium received) in ‘Other liabiities' Subsequent to initial recogmition, ABCIB's hiability under each
guarantee 18 measured al the best estmate of expenditure required to settle any financial obligation ansing as a result of the guarantee

Any increase In the hability relating to financial guarantees is taken to the profit and loss account in ‘provisions’ The premium received 1s recognised in the profit and loss
account in 'Fees and commission receivable’ on a sraight line basis over the life of the guarantee

|, Bubsidiarios and associates

Investments in subsidianes and associates are stated at cost less impairment losses Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in the profit and loss account if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of the investment

j- Fixod assots and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumutated depreciation and impairment losses  Such cost includes costs directly attnbutable to making the asset capable of operating
as intended

Depreciation is provided on all fixed assets at rates calculated to wnite off the cost less estimated residual value on prices prevailing at the date of acquisition of each asset
avenly over Its expected useful Iife as follows

Leasehold improvements - lower of lease term or 10 years
Motor vehucles, office equipment

including computer hardware and software -3-5years

Office fumiture - 5 years

The camying values of fixed assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

1. Accounting policies {(continuad)
k. Deforred tax

Deferred tax 13 recognised wn respect of all bring differences that have onginated but not reversed at the balance shaet date, where transactions or events have occurred at
that date that will result in an obligation to pay more, or nght to pay less or to receive more tax, with the following exceptions

-Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that the Directors consider it more likely than not that there will be suttable taxable profits from which the future
reversal of the undertying timing differences can be deducted

-Deferred tax 1s measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the perods in which timing differences reverse, based on tax rates and
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

I. Loasos

Operating leases are leases that do not transfer substantratly all the nsks and rewards incidental to ownership to the lessee ABCIB has entered into operating leases where
rentals payable are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-ine basis over the lease term

m. Penslon bencfite

i) Defined benefit pension plan

ABCIB participates i1 a defined benefit pension scheme, which requires contnbutions to be made to a separately administered fund The cost of providing benefits under the
defined benefit scheme 15 determined separately using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method |

The scheme was closed to new members in June 2004 from which time membership of a defined coninbution pension scheme i1s avallable to all employees The Scheme was
closed to the fulure accrual benefits on 30th September 2010

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit scheme is determined separately using the projected unit credit actuanal valuation method, which attnbutes
entiltemant to benefits to the current penod (to determine current service cost) and to the current and prior penods (i determine the present value of defined benefit
obligations) and 15 based on actuanal adwice Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-ine basis over the vesting period or immediately if the benefits
have vested When a settlement or a curtallment occurs the change in the present value of the scheme liabilities and the farr value of the scheme assets reflects the gamn or
loss which 1s recognised in the profit and loss account

The interest element of the defined benefit cost represents the change in present value of scheme obligations relating to the passage of time, and i1s determined by applying
the discount rate to the opening present value of the benefit obligation, taking into account matenal changes in the obligations during the year The expected return on scheme
assets 1s based on an assessment made at the beginning of the year of long-tesm market returns on scheme assets, adjusted for the effect on the farr value of scheme assets
of centnbutions received and benefits paid during the year The difference between the expected return on scheme assets and the interest costs 1s recognised tn the profit and
loss account

Actuanal gains and [osses are recognised in full in the statement of recognised gains and losses in the period in which they occur
The defined benefit pension asset or liability in the balance sheet compnses the total of the present value of the defined benefit obligation {using a discount rate based on high
quality corporate bonds that have been rated at AA- or equivalent status), less any past service cost not yet recognised and less the fair-value of scheme assets out of which

the obligations are to be settled directly Fair value 1s based on market price information and in the case of quoted secunties i1s the published mid-market pnce The value of a
net benefit pension asset 1s imited to the amount that may be recovered erther through reduced contnibutions or agreed refunds from the scheme

il) Defined contribution pension scheme
ABCIB also operates a defined contnbution pension scheme The contnbution payable to a defined contribution scheme 18 in proportion to the services rendered to ABCIB by
the ermployees and 15 recorded as an expense under "Staff costs’ in the profit and loss account Unpaid contnbutions are recorded as a liability

R, Provisions

Provisions are recognised when ABCIB has a present obligation {legal or constructive} as a result of a past event, and 1t 1 probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economte benefits wilt be required to settle the obhigation and a rehiable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

1. Begmental reporting

ABCIB has more than one business segment Trade and Commodity Finance, Project and Structured Finance, Treasury and Others including Islamic Financial Services and
Head Cffice Analysis of the business segments 1s included in note 44 The ultimate ongin of all income 1s determined 1o be the UK Accordingly no geographical segmental
information 1s disclosed

3. Intorost payable

Interest payable includes £6,705,023 in respect of interest on the subordinated llability (2011 £6,286,733)
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NOTES TOC THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

4, Analysls of tho profit and loas account by classification

2012
Financlal
Available-for
Loans and liabilities at Non financial
Trading receivables sgle and held amortised Instruments Total
to rmaturity cost
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Interest recewable and simdar income from debt securties
and certificates of deposit purchased - 4,103 2,102 - . 6,205
Other interest receivable and similar income - 59,245 - - - 59,245
Interest payable - - - {25,937) - {25,937)
Net Interest income/ (expense) - 63,348 2102 _{25,937) - 39,513
Fees and commissions recelvable - 39,164 - - - 39,164
Fees and commissions payable - - - {10,797) - {10,797}
Dealing profits {including exchange differences) 338 - - - . 336
Loss on sale of investment secunties - - (2,253) . - {2,263)
Other operating income - - - - 1,321 1,321
Total operating income/ (expenss) 336 102,512 {151) {36,734) 1,321 87,284
Loss on sale of Investment secunties represents the loss on EFG Hellas Available For Sale secunties which were partly provided for in previous years
2011
Available-for- Financial
Trading r:g;::;:g sale and held liabihtres at N;Z&';’;ﬁz Total
to matunty amortised cost
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Interest receivable and similar income from debt secuniies
and certficates of deposit purchased - 3,187 4,236 - - 7,423
Other interest receivable and similar income - 80,767 - - - 50,767
Interest payable - - - (28,680) - {28,680)
Net Interest income/ (expense) - 53,954 4238 (28 680) - 29,510
Fees and commissions receivable - 33,193 - - - 33,193
Fees and commissions payable - - - {9,840) - {9,840)
Dealing profits (including exchange differences) an - - - - 311
Profit on sale of Investment securites - - 5,057 - - 5,057
QOther operating income - - - - 1,944 1,944
Total operating ncome/ {expense) 311 87,147 9,203 {38,520) 1,944 80,175
8, Other operating income
2012 2011
£000 £000
Rental tncome 217 277
Trade finance fees 1,025 1.681
Islamic banking income 92 34
Profit on disposal of fixed assets 5 29
Other (78) (77)
1,321 1,944
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

0. Administrative expanscs

2012 2011
£000 £000
a) Staff costs
Salanes 21,815 198,855
Soctal secunty costs 4,024 3,380
Pension costs (note 43)
- Defined benefit scheme 188 {18)
- Defined contnbution schemes 1,165 1,200
Redundancy cost 190 -
27,182 24,228
Other admirustrative expenses 12,829 11,006
40,011 35,235

Other adminisirative expenses include premises rent and related utiliies cost professtonal fees, offica system and supplies including maintenance contracts and others

2012 2011
Number Number
The average monthly number of employees (excluding Directors) dunng the year 184 184
b) Directors' emoluments
The aggregate emofuments of the Directors of ABC Intemational Bank plc for the year were
2012 2011
£000 £000
Aggregate emoluments in respect of qualifying services 957 1,978
Bank's contribution towards pension scheme in respect of qualifying services - 38
Number of Directars accruing benefits under defined contnbution scheme - 1
In respect of the hughest paid Director
Aggregate emoluments in respect of qualifying services 548 1,090
7. Provisions
2012 2011
£000 £000
The net credit/ (charge) for the year in respect of provisions 1s made up as follows
Loans and advances to banks (299) -
Loans and advances to customers 751 {120)
Collective impairment provision 6,200 (3,950)
Financial iInvestments - available-for-sale - 19
Off-balance sheet {1,875) -
Recovenes in respect of advances previously wntten off 185 10
4,962 (4,041)
0. Profit on ordinary activities beforo tax
2012 2019
£000 £000
Profit 1s stated after (charging)/crediting
Foreign currency gains, net 382 314
Auditors’ remuneration audit of the financral statements {291) (251)
taxabon services {109) (161)
Operating lease rentals hire of equipment {76) (31)
land and bulldings {3,083) {2,972)
Income from iisted secunties 6,205 7,423
U, Taxatlon
2012 2011
£000 £000
Analysis of tax charge for the year
Current tax
UK corporation tax (4,529) (3,123)
Foreign tax (2,739) {1,827)
Total current tax (7,268) {5,050)
Deferred tax
Recognition of brought forward losses 3,202 1,811
Total deferred tax 3,202 1,811
Total tax charge for the year {4,066} (3,239)
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continuad)

9. Taxation (continued) 2012 2011
£000 £000
Factors affecting tax charge for the year
The differences are explained below
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 34,790 20,547
Profit en ordinary actvities muttiphied by standard rate of corporation
tax in the UK of 24 5% (2011 26 5%) (7,789) (5,445)
Effect of
Disallowed expenses and non-taxable income (1,688) (1,714)
Capital allowance in excess of depreciation 7 54
Branch losses utilised 2,734 1,908
Group relief 255 268
Double tax rehef 4,694 1,590
Forewgn tax (2,739) {1,926)
Pension deduction 198 218
Others 58 _
Current tax charge (7,268) (5,050)
10. Certificates of deposlt purchased
2012 2011
£000 £000
Analysed by maturnity
withun three manths 61,140 120,000
between three months and one year 250,000 -
31,140 120,000
11, Analysls of assots and llabliities by classification
2012
Financial Financial
investments Loans and Available-for-  liabilities at Non financial Total
heldto receivables sale amortised Instruments
maturity cost
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash and balances at ceniral hanks - 70,228 - - - 70,228
Certificates of deposit purchased - 311,140 - - - 311,140
Due from banks - 955,140 - - - 955,140
Loans and advances to customers - 1,469,064 23,128 - - 1,492,192
Financial mvestments - available-for-sale - - 362,774 - - 362,774
Tangible fixed assets - - - - 1,052 1,052
Deferred tax asset - - - - 11,335 11,335
Other assets - - - - 79,476 79,476
Prepayments and accrued income - - - - 54,798 54,796
Total assets - 2,805,572 385,902 - 146,659 3,338,133
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions - - - 2,422,055 - 2,422,055
Deposits from customers - - - 261,015 - 261,015
Other lrabihties . - - - 68,374 68,374
Accruals and deferred income - - - - 21,239 21,239
Term borrowing - - - 59,455 - 59,455
Pension scheme liability - - - - 5,814 5,814
Total liabllities - - - 2,742,525 95,427 2,837,952
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

11. Anatysls of assets and llabllitios by classification (continued)

201
Financal Financial
investments - Loans and Avallable-for- labilities at MNon financial Total
feldto  recevables sale amortsed cost instruments
matunty
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash and balances at centra! banks B 61,192 - - - 81,182
Certificates of deposit purchased - 120,000 - - - 120,000
Due from banks - 831,188 - - - 831 188
Loans and advances to customers - 1,195,809 27,885 - - 1,223,504
Financial investments - avallable-for-sale - - 474 614 - - 474614
Tangible fixed assets . . - - 978 878
Deferred tax asset - - - - 7.871 7.971
Other assets . - - - 55,040 55,040
Prepayments and accrued income - - - - 45557 45 557
Total assets - 2,208,169 502,308 - 109,546 2,820,044
Depesits from banks and other financial institutions - - - 1,831,184 - 1,831,184
Deposits from customers - - - 188,139 - 188,139
Cther liathlities - - - - 508,447 58,447
Accruals and deferred income - - - - 11,882 11,882
Term borrowing - - - 303,062 - 303,062
Pension scheme liability - - - - 3,593 3,593
Total liabilities - - - 2,322,385 73,722 2,396,107
12. Due from banks 2012 201
£000 £000
Repayable
on demand 35 31,379
within three months 520,513 527,583
between three months and one year 379,642 287 518
between one and five years 54,830 8,700
after five years 1,677 1,645
956,697 837,134
Allowance for impairment losses (note 15) {1,557) (5,846)
955,140 831,188
Included in the above are balances due from ABC Group undertakings of 82,203 26 086
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

13, Loans and advances to customors 2012 2011
£000 £000
Repayable
on demand 4 85750
within three months 812,796 574,339
betwaen three months and one year 408,937 314,545
between one and five years 217,497 175,304
after five years 59,929 73,107
1,499,163 1,233 045
Allowance for impairment iosses (note 15) {6,971} {9541)
1,492,192 1,223 504
Included in the above are balances due from ABC Group undertakings of 41,611 40,432

Included in the above are available-for-sale loans amounting to £23 127,840 (2011 - £27,695,000)

ABCIB assesses at each balance sheet date whether there 15 any objective evidenca that loans to ABC Group undertakungs are impaired A specific loan of £38 2 mullion
to ABC Investment Holdings Limited ("ABCIH") a subsidiary of ABCIB, 1s secured on the freehold of a property, being the Headquarters of ABCIB, 100% owned by ABCIH
and leased to ABCIB on a long leasehold [n assessing whether the value of the secunty 18 sufficient to support the loan value, ABCIB assesses the carrying value of the
buidding The higher of value in use and fair value iess costs to sell has been used to determine if any impairment exists Foltowing this impairment assessment, the vatue
In use was determined to be in excess of the camying value and as such impairrment was ignored In performing this assessment the cash flows generated from this asset
for the remamder of its useful economic life were used Modest growth rate has been applied to cashflows over the remaining useful Ife of the asset beyond the current
planng cycle up to 2015 The rate used to discount these cashflows was 14% pre-tax cost of equity which 1s witin the range of cost of equity for the banking institutions
akin to ABCIB for each individual cash generating unit in the Bank

ABCIB defines forbearance as a temporary deferral of payments pnior to an agreement or formal restructure being reached between ABCIB and customers At the year
end, ABCIB had two loans totalling £6 milion which were subject to forbearance

14, Loans and advances which wero past duo

2012 2011
Loans and Loans and Loans and Loans and
advances to  advances to  advances io advances to
banks customers banks customers
£000 £000 £000 £000
Past due over 3 years 1676 6,376 1,783 6650
1,876 6,376 1,783 6,650
Loans and advances by credit quality
Loans and advances
- neither past due nor impaired 955,021 1,492,787 835 351 1,226,395
- past due but not impaired - 882 486 899
- impaired 1676 5,494 1,287 5,751
958 697 1,499,163 837,134 1,233,045
Impaired loans and advances 2012 2011
£000 £000
Total impaired [oans and advances to
- banks 1,676 1,287
- customers 5,494 5,751
7,170 7,038
18, Movaments in sliowance for Impairment loases Individually assessed Collectively assessed
Banks Customers Banks Customers Total
€000 £000 £000 £400 £000
Brought forward 1st January 2012 1,287 6,000 4,659 3,541 15,487
Provision for the year 367 - - - 367
Decrease (68) 751) (4,659) {1,541} {7,019)
Foreign currency transtation adjustment {29) (278) - - (307)
Carried forward 315t December 2012 1,557 4971 - 2,000 8,528
18. Movomonts in provision for ausponded Interest 2012 2011
£000 £000
Brought forward 1st January 1,969 1,964
Interest suspended [ess recoveries dunng the year 34 (5}
Foreign currency translation adjustment {89) 10
Carried forward 31st Decembar 1,914 1,969
Loans and advances where Interest is suspended at year end
Before allowance for impairment losses 8,052 8,433
After allowance for impairment losses 1,524 1,935
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17. Financlal investmants - available-for-sale

2012 2011
£000 £000
Listed (Debt investments) 362,774 474,614
362,774 474,614
Due within one year 252,837 330,600
Due between one and two years 57,857 31,750
Due between two and five years 52,080 100,986
Due over five years - 11,378
362774 474,614
All available-for-sale financial investments are debt instruments which are tssued by Govemments and non-public corporate bodies
The movement on avallable-for-sale financial investments s as follows
2012 2011
£000 £000
At 1st January 474,614 285,939
Additions 222,235 272,809
Repayments and disposals (332,964) (71,292)
Fair value movement 17,027 (6,311)
Exchange movernents {18,138) (8,331)
At 318t December 362,774 474,614
The net unamortsed discount at 31st December 2012 was £103,587 (2011 £256,388)
The net unamortised premium at 31st December 2012 was £613,684 (2011 £517,953)
Fair value has been determined by reference to quoted market pnces
10, Interost in subsidinrios and associated undertakings
ABCIB owns the following investment in subsidianes and associated companies in addition to those disclosed m note 20
Nature of business Country of registration Ownership %
Bronce Fund LLC Property USA 43%
The investment in Bronco Fund LLC amounts to £3 7 million which 1s provided for in full in the accounts
ABCIB does not have significant influence over Bronco Fund LLC As a result Bronco Fund LLC 15 transferred to financial investments - available-for-sale
19, Sharos in group undartakings
ABCIB owns the following investments in subsidianes
Nature of business Country of registration Ownership %
Alphabet Nominees Limited Nominee company England 100%
Abcint Nominees Limited Nominea company England 100%
ABCIB Islarmic Asset Management Limited Advisory services England 100%
ABCIB Leasing Limited Asset trading company England 100%
ABC Investment Holdings Limited Property holding company England 100%
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0. Tangible fixed assets

Leasehold Furniture Office Motor Total
improvements  and fitings equipment vehicles
£000 £000 £000 £000 EQQ0
Cost
At 1st January 2012 755 1,012 9,225 1909 11,191
Additions - 186 469 43 528
Disposals - - - {31) {3n
Exchange differences and other adjustments {30} (14) (313) {2) (358)
At 31st December 2012 725 1,014 9,381 209 11,329
Depreciation
At 18t January 2012 645 853 8,578 137 10,213
Charge for the year 41 45 327 32 445
Disposals - - - ) (31)
Exchange differences and other adjustments {23} {27) {302) 2 {350)
At 318t December 2012 663 871 8,603 140 10,277
Net book value
At 318t December 2012 62 143 778 69 1,052
At 315t December 2011 110 159 847 82 978
21, Doferred tax easet 2012 2011
£000 £000
At 1st January 7,971 6,019
Recognised dunng the year 3,364 1,852
At 318t December 11,335 7,971
The major components of the deferred tax asset are as follows
Unutiised tax losses ansing on P&L results 3,786 3,735
Asset in respect of sub-debt deduction 7,268 3,750
Asset in respect of accelerated capital allowances 161 228
Asset in respect of pension deduction 120 260
11,335 7.871

There s an unrecogrised deferred tax asset of £3 5 milion based on a tax rate of 23% (2011 £7 3mulon) ansing due to brought forward tax losses, accelerated capital
allowances sub-debt deduction and pension scheme deduction Management has performed a review of recoverability of deferred tax assets congidenng forecast profits
for the next three years The assumptions used In prepanng these forecasts have been subject to a senes of stress tests to ensure the forecasts fall within a reasonable

range of outcomes

The UK Govemment has announced its intention to reduce the rate of corporation tax to 21% with effect from Apnl 2014 The maximum effect on the recognised deferred

tax asset of the reduction in the UK corporation tax rate to 21% 13 expected to be 227K (equivalent to 2% of the closing gress amounts)

23, Othor assote 2012 2011
£000 £000

Pasitive mark to market of denvatives 51,565 44,483
Fair value adjustment on hedged items 492 54
Other 27,419 10,493
79,476 55,040

1), Propayments and accrusd Income 2012 2011
£000 EODO

Prepayments and accrued income 3,328 1,544
Interest receivable 51,470 44 013
54,796 45,567

24, Dopoalts from banks and other financial institutions 2042 2011
£000 £000

Repayable

on demand 818,164 528,811

within three months 1,206,961 1,077,657
between three months and one year 315,410 228,616
between one and five year 81,520 -
2422055 1,831,184

Included in the above are balances due to ABC Group undertakings of 504,649 85,751

28, Daposits from customers 2012 2011
£000 £000

Repayable

on demand 177,317 104,345

within three months 80,891 80,028
between three months and one year 2,807 3,786
261,015 188,139

Included in the above are balances due to ABC Group undertakings of 5,183 2,824
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26, Other llabllitles 2012 2011
£000 £000
Negative mark to market of denvatives 3923 1,493
Fair value adjustment on hedged items 48,103 42,879
Tax and social secunty costs 6,536 2,468
Cther 9,812 11,607
68,374 §8,447
The amounts above descnbed as "other represent standard cperational labilites incured during the normal course of business
27, Aceruals and doferrod Income 2012 2011
£000 £000
Interest payable 3,321 2,549
Accruals and deferred income 17,918 9,133
21,239 11,682
48, Term borrowing 2012 201
£000 £000
Repayabie
within one year 59,455 277 938
between two and five years - 25124
59,455 303,062
Included in the above are batances due to ABC Group undertakings of 59,455 189,691

Interest on all term borrowing 18 caleulated by reference to LIBOR plus margins which are repnced monthly

20, Bubordinated liabllitios

The following loans are unsecured and are subordinated in nght of payment to the ordinary creditors, including depositors

2012 2011
£000 £000

GBP85 0 million Zero Coupon Bond 72,126 68,459
GEP16 3 milhion Zero Coupon Bond 14,388 13,043
GBP18 4 million Zero Coupon Bond 14,190 13,303
GBP15 8 rmiion Zero Coupon Bond 13,822 13,118
114,626 107,821

On 12th December 2005 ABCIB 1ssued a Subordinated zero coupon bond for £50 million repayable at par of £85 0 mullion on 44th December 2015

On 21st Decermnber 2007 ABCIB (ssued a Subordinated zero coupon bond for £10 million repayable at par of £16 3 million on 31st December 2014

On 30th June and 4th September 2008 ABCIB i1ssued two Subordinated bonds for £10 million each repayable at par of £16 4million and £15 8mill:ion on 31st December
2014
The subordinated habihtes are due to the Ulumate Parent Undertaking

30. Called up share capltal

Authorised issued
Ordinary shares of £1 each £000 £000
At 1st January 2012 300,000,000 182,296,000
Issued dunng the year - 30,000,000
At 31st December 2012 300,000,000 212,296,000

The adequacy of ABCIB's capital rs montored using, among other measures, the rules and ratios estabirshed by the Basel Commuttee on Banking Supervision and
adopted by the Financial Services Authonty (FSA) in supenising banks

ABCIB's policy 1s to maintain & strong capital base to support the devetopment of its business and to meet regulatory capital requirements at all tmes The principal forms
of capital are called up share capital, equity shareholders' funds and subordinated debt

The FSA supervises ABCIB and as such receves information on the capital adequacy of ABCIB The FSA requires each bank to mamtain an idividually prescnbed ratio
of total capital to nsk-weighted assets taking into account both balance sheet assets and off-balance transachons ABCIB complied in full with the FSA's capital adequacy
requirements dunng 2012 and 2011

ABCIB's capital 1s divided into two tiers

Tier 1 capital compnses aquity shareholders’ funds

Tier 2 capital compnses subordinated habilites and allowance for collective impairment losses

Subordinated Liabiiies may not exceed 50% of Tier 1 capital

Banking operations are categonsed as erther trading book or banking book and nsk-weighted assets are deterrined accordingly Banking beok nsk-weighted assets are
measured by means of a hierarchy of nsk weightings classified according to the nature of each asset and counterparty, taking into account any eligible collateral or
guarantees

Banking book off-balance sheet items giving nse to credit, foreign exchange or interest rate nsk are assigned weights appropnate to the category of the counterparty,
taking into account any eligible collateral or guarantees Trading book nisk-weighted assets are determined by taking into account market related nsks such as foreign
exchange, interest rate position nsks, and counterparty nsk
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30. Callod up share capital (continued)

Capital structure
2012 2011
£000 £000
Tier 1 Capital 390,100 335,480
Compesition of requlatory capital
2012 2011
£000 £000
Tier 1 capital 350,100 335,480
Tier 1 Capital Ratio 15 5% 14 6%
Tier 2 capital 26,905 48,335
Total requlatory capital 417,005 383,825
Risk-weighted assets
Banking book 2,493,441 2,252,488
Trading book 27,223 47 548
Total 2,520,664 2,300,038
Risk-welghted assets included in the totals above
in respect of
-contingent habilihes 578,988 514,982
-commitments 107.834 79,908
Risk Asset Ratio % %
Total capital 165 167
Ter 1 Capitat incorporates the profit for the respective years
31, Equity Shareholders' funds
Ordinary Profit and Fair value
share capital loss account reserve Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Brought forward at 1st January 2012 182,296 163,193 {19,473} 316,016
Profit for the year - 27,724 - 27,724
New caputal issued 30,000 30,000
Actuanal loss recognised in pension scheme (net of deferred tax) (note 44} . (2,948) - (2,848)
Net unrecognised loss on avalabie-for-sale ; . 17,311 17,311
investments and loans and advances
Corporation tax relating to change in value of availlable-
for-sale investments and loans and advances (2,548) (2.548)
Carried forward at 318t December 2012 212,296 175,421 (2,182) 385,555

Shareholders’ funds are all attnbutable to equity interests for 2012 and 2011

The fair value reserve compnses changes in fair valua of avallable-for-sale investrents and avallable-for-sale loanis and advances, adjusted by the related deferred tax

asset

32. Transactions with directors and officers

The aggregate amounts outstanding at 31st December under transactions arrangements and agreements made by ABCIB for Directors and for officers, within the
meaning of Schedule @ to the Companies Act 2006, of ABCIB were nil (2011 - rul)
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$3, Contingont llabilities and commitments

Contract or undertying principal amount 2012 2011
£000 £000
Formal standby facilites, credit ines and other commitments to lend
Less than one year 139,802 113021
Ovar one year 152,847 90,182
292,649 203,203
At 315t December ABCIB was committed to making the following annual payments in respect of operating leases
2012 2011
Land and Other Land and Other
bulldings buldings
£000 £000 £000 £000
Leases which expire
within two years - 4 145 29
within two to five years - 74 731 18
between five and ten years 2 506 - 2,089 -

34, Financial Instrument Contracts

a) Derivative financlal Instruments

Denvative contracts are financial instruments that denve their value from an undertying rate or price ABCIB has entered into vanous denvative contracts as pancipal
either as trading or hedging transactons Trading transactions include all customer and propnetary transactions and related hedges Hedging transactions compnse
denvatives used to hedge specific interest rate mismatches and foreign exchange exposures A descnption of ABCIB's use of denvative instruments and an outhine of its

approach to nsk management have been inctuded in the Chief Executive Officer's Report for the year

The accounting treatment explamed in Note 1 3(e) "Hedge accounting’ vanes according to the nature of the item hedged and in compliance with the hedge cntena Hedges
enterad into by ABCIB which provide economic hedges but do not meet the hedge accounting cntena are treated as 'Denvatives held or issued for trading purposes’

Netung has not been taken inte consideration in the figures given below Nane of these amounts are intended to give an indication of possible future gans or losses Far
values are the amounts at which an asset or hability could be exchanged in an arm's length trensaction between tnformed parties, other than in a forced sale

Forward and future contracts are contraciual agreements to buy and sell a specified financial instrument at a specific pnce and date in the future Forwards are custormised
contracts transacted in the over-the-counter market Futures contracts are transacted in standardised amounts on regulated exchanges and are subject to daily cash

margin requirements

Swaps are contractual agreements between two parties to exchange movements ininterest or foreign currency rates and equity indices, and {in the case of credit default

swaps) to make pavments with respect to defined credit events based on specified noional amounts

In addition to denvative financial instruments, ABCIB uses foreign cumency borrowings as hedges of centain foreign currency dencmenated equity tnvestments (note 18)

The table below shows the farr values of denvative financial mstruments, recorded as assets or liabilites, together with ther notional amounts The nobional amount,
recorded gross, Is the amount of a denvative's underlying asset, reference rate or index and s the basis upon which changes in the value of denvatives are measured

The notonal amounts indicate the volume of transactions at the year end and are indicative of nesther the market nsk nor the credit nsk

Fair value has been determined using discounted cash flow models applying nsk adjusted interest rates as appropnate

2012 2011
FV- Notlonal
FV -Asgets Liabilitles amount FV -Assets FV - Liabilibes Notional amount
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

1) Derivatives held for trading
Forward foreign exchange contracts & Interest rate swaps
Total at 318t December 1,733 1,702 235483 23 58 233, 818
11} Derivatives held as falr value hedges
Interest rate swaps & Swaptions
Total st 318t December 45,832 2221 188,783 44 262 1,437 171,744

ABCIB uses interest rate swap contracts to hedge against loans and advances to customers, deposits from customers and subordinated habilites The fair value of the

hedging instruments i1s disclosed above The main counterparty to these swaps contracts is the ulbmate parent company

1) Hedged items
Loans and advances to customers 1,729 2,221 109,753 1,505 1,437 81 744
Deposits from customers and subardmated labiities 45,103 - 80,000 42 757 - 80,000

49,832 2221 189,753 44 262 1,437 171,744

Deposits from customers and subordinated liabilibes represent amounts due to the vltmate parent company The cntical terms of 2/l hedging instruments and hedged

items are matched

Farr value adjustments in relation to hedged items are recorded under Cther assets {note 22} and Qther liabilibes {note 26) respectively

1} Falr Values

ABCIB's trading book comprises solely foreign cumency derivatives, which have been included in the balance sheet at farr value and disclosed in part (a)(1) of this note
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

34, Pinanaial Instrument Contracts (continued)

1Y) Interest rate ropricing

The table below summanses the non-trading book mismatches of the dates on which interest receivable on assets and interest payable on habiliies are next reset to
market rates or, if earlter, the dates on which the instrument matures Short-term debtors and creditors are ncluded in the table below

2012
Notmore  More than More than More than
than 3 months 6 months 1 year More Non
3 months but not mora but not more but not more than interest
than 8 months  than 1 year than 5years 5 years bearing Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Agsots
Cash and balances at central banks 702 - - - - - 702
Certficates of deposit purchased 612 1170 1330 - - - 12
Due from banks 698 0 118 2 1251 154 - (18) 955 1
Loans and advances to customers 10397 381 126 8 146 - 70) 1,492 2
Financial investments - available-for-sale 3442 186 - - - - 3628
Other assets, prepayments and deferred tax asset - - - - - 1456 1456
Fixed assets - . * - - 11 11
Total assets 2,213 3 5719 3849 300 - 1381 33382
Liabliitlps and sharsholders' funds
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 2,025 3 28413 Mo 815 - - 24221
Deposits from customers 258 3 24 03 - - - 2810
Other habilities, accruals and pension fiability - - - - - 954 954
Term bomowing and subacdmated labdiies 59.5 - . 114.6 - - 1741
Shareholders’ funds - - - - - 3858 B85 6
Total habilives and shareholders' funds 23431 286 7 M3 196.1 - 4810 33382
Net position (129 8) 2852 3536 {166 1) - (342 9)
Off balance sheet (6 6) 114 - {4 8) - -
Interest rate sensitivity gap {136 4) 296 & 3516 (170 9) - {342 9)
Cumulative gap {136 9) 160 2 5138 3429 3429 -
2011
Not more More than More than More than
than 3 months 8 months 1 year More Non
3months butnot more but not more  But not more than interest
than 6 months  than 1 year than 5 years 5 years beanng Total
£m £m £m £m £m £Em £m
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 812 - - - - - 612
Certificates of deposit purchased 1200 - - - - - 1200
Due from banks 584 0 1275 1178 71 - (52) 8312
Loang and advances to customers 848 1 197 8 1638 113 09 18 1,2235
Financial investments - available-for-sale 399 1 713 - - - 42 474 8
Financial investments - held to matunty - - - - - - -
Cther assets, prepayments and deferred tax asset - - - - - 10886 1088
Fixed assets - - - - - 10 10
Total assets 20124 396 4 2818 184 09 1103 2.8200
Liabilities and shareholders’ funds
Deposits from banks and other finangial institutions 1,6067 1736 519 - - - 1,8312
Deposits from customers 184 3 28 10 - - - 1881
Other liabiliies, accruals and pension hiability - - - - - 737 737
Term borrowing and subordinated labilittes 3030 - - 1080 - - 4110
Sharahoiders' funds - - - - - 316 0 3160
Total liabilites and shareholders’ funds 2,093 0 176 4 529 108 0 - 3607 28200
Net position {80 6) 2200 2287 (89 6) 09 (279 4)
Off balance sheet 132 - 803 {73 5)
Interest rate sensitwity gap (67 4) 2200 2889 (163 1) 0% (279 4)
Cumulative gap {67 4) 1526 4418 2785 2704 -
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

38, Fair value of other financial Instruments

The fable below shows a companson by class of the carmying amounts and fair values of ABCIB's financial instruments that are camed in the financial statements The
table does not include the fair values of non-financial assets and non-financia! kabilities

2012 201
Measurement Carryhn Unrecognised Carryin Unrecognised
level anr::ungt Fair value gain/{loss) ar:glur?t Far value gain/(loss)
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Financlal agsets
Certificates of deposit purchased 1 311,140 311,140 - 120,000 120,000 -
Due from banks nfa* 932,077 830,694 (1,383) 831,188 836,458 5,270
Loans and advances to customers n/a 1,492,192 1 499,523 7.331 1,223,504 1,241,159 17,855
Bue from banks - available for sale n/a 23,083 23128 €5 - - -
Financial investments - avallable-for-sale 1 382,774 382,774 - 474 614 474 614 -
Financial llabilities
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions n/a 2,422 055 2 417,201 4764 1,831,184 1,825,318 5,868
Deposits from customers nfa 261,015 260967 48 188,139 188,049 a0
Term borowing nfa 59,455 59,147 308 303,082 297,305 5,757
Subordinated labilities n/a 114,626 125,488 (10,862) 107,921 118,550 {10,629}
171 24,011

* These assets and habilibes are camed at amortised cost basis

The financial assets and financtal habiities are classified into levels 1 to 3 using fair value hierarchy that reflects the significant inputs used i making the measurement
Level 1 financial instruments have quoted prices in an active market for identical assets or liabililes Leve! 2 istruments have inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for assets or labilities esther directly or tndirectly Level 3 financial mstruments have mputs that are not based on cbservable market data
The following descnbes the methodologies and assumptions used to determine farr values for those financal instruments which are not already recorded at fair value in
the financial statements

For financial assets and financia! liabilites that are hquid or having a short term matunty {less than three months) it 1s assumed that the carrying amounts approxamate to
their farr value This assumption is also applied to demand deposits without a speaific matunty, and vanable rate financial instruments of high credit quality

The faw value of vanable rate financial assets and habilibes is estinated using present value approaches where future cash ftows from the asset o abiity are estmated
and then discounted using nsk-adjusted interest rates estimated at 1 62% based on USD LIBOR and USD A rated bond spread

The fair value of fixed rate financial assets and liabilties carned at amortised cost not hedged through fair value hedges 1s estmated by comparing market interest rates
when they were first recogmised with current market rates oftered for similar financial instruments The estimated fair value of fixed interest beanng deposits 1S based on
discounted cash fiows using prevailing money-market interest rates for debts with similar credit nsk and matunty For quoted debt 1ssued, the fair values are calculated
based on quoted market prces

38. Market and liquidity risk

Market nsk and liquidity nsk are defined as follows

Market risk 1s the current or prospective nsk to eamings and capital ansing from adverse movements in interest rates, assat prices or forexgn exchange rates in the trading
book This nsk can anse from market making, dealing, and position taking in bonds, secunties, curencies or denvative instruments

Liquicty nsk 1s the nsk that ABCIB, although solvent, either does not have available sufficient financial resources to enabfe it to meet s obligations as they fall due, or can
secure such resources only at excessive cost

ABCIB adopts an enterprise-wide coordinated approach to nsk management and seeks to achieve the highest possible standards n overall nsk management, monitonng
and controf

The corporate govermnance framework for nsk management ensures appropnate controls, appropnate semor management oversight and thorough nsk anatys:s and
reporting conducted by an independent nsk management team with the capatylibes and resources to evaluate and monitor nsk exposures and limits

Management of market nsk and hiquidity nsk are the day-to-day responsibility of the Treasurer with the overssght of the Head of Risk Management The Treasurer ensures
that all of ABCIB's cbligations are met when due and that market nsk and position hmits are respected at all imes  Compliance with market nsk imits 1s monitored by the
Internal Control Department, which reports to the Head of Risk Management

The Board Risk Committee oversees the market nsk management process Market nsk management and hiquidity nisk 15sues are also reviewed at the monthly Asset and
Liabulity Management Committee {"ALCO"), the members of which include senior management of ABCIB, chaired by the Chief Executive Officer ALCO reports via the
Management Committee to the Board  All market nisk limits (including Value at Risk limits) are agreed by the Board Risk Commitiee and ALCO

ABCIB uses a comprehensive, aggregated nsk measurement systern based on a Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology as the basis for monitonng and controlling market
nsk End of day position data from the dealing system are interfaced directly to the VaR model where risk sensibvities and valuations are computed VaR s calculated by
the “histonical simulation” methodology using a one-giay nsk honzon and a 98th percentile, single-tailed confidence nterval Daily losses are anticipated to exceed the VaR
once every hundred business days, on average For infermation purposes, there 1s also a dally calewlation of the consolidated VaR for the entire asset/ Lability book of
ABCIB, including the banking and trading books The VaR model 1s used for mternal nsk management purposes only and it not used for calculating market nsk
exposure reported to the FSA for capital adequacy purposes Thus, the FSA has not reviewed ABCIB’s model

To ensure that the VaR model provides a far assessment of the nsk, a back testing sensitivity analysis 1s in place to compare VaR predictions to profit/ ioss outcomes
Additionaily, a senes of stress-testing scenanos are performed on the trading book to assess the effect on the market nsk of severe markel conditions  Stress-testing and
back testing are reviewed by the Board Risk Committee

The limitations to VaR are recognised within ABCIB at all levels The key lirmitations are the use of histoncal data as an estimator for future pnce action and the
assumption that open positions can be hedged within the specified one-day holding penod Therefore, ABCIB subdivides market nsk into key types for which foreign
exchange nsk, bond pnce nsk and interest rate nsk are the matenal categones Risk management for each category 1s fine-tuned by employing surtable sensitaty lmits
such as Basis Point Value imits (which measure the potential change in portfolio fair value for an instantaneous ¢ 01% nise In interest rates), stop-loss imits and open
position lints

Currently, ABCIB has a low nsk appetite for market nsk and trading 1s confined to standard market instruments with limited use of derivatives and no approved limits for
option nsk
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS {continued)

38, Markot and liquldity risk {continued)

2012 2011
ABCIB's VaR expogures
Maximum Minimum Maximum Minimum
£000 £000 £000 £o00
Trading 59 - 218 -
Banking 14,920 748 14,003 2116

Liquldity risk

Liquidity Rrsk 15 defined as the nsk to ABCIB's eamings, capital and solvency, arising from inability 1o meet contractual payment and other financial obligations on their due
date, or inability to fund (at a reasonable cost) the asset book and business needs of the bank (and, by extension, the needs of its customers) This nisk may or may not
anse due to issues specifically related to the bank itself

ABCIB 1s fully compliant wath the FSA iquidity rules introduced in 2010 and implementation of the FSA compliant hquidity buffer began in January 2011

ABCIB manages its iquidity nsk actively, in view of the bank’s reliance on funding from connected parties, customers and bank correspondents These deposits tend to
be short-term but the bank has lenpthened its deposit profile and diversified its funding through its medum-term funding faciity from other banks The bank's approach 1o
hquidity ensures that nsks are mitigated by

- No reliance on the general interbank market for funding

- No reliance on volatile retail or corporate deposits

- Ability to source funding from Arab World correspondent banks

- Ability to source deposits from the ABC shareholders

- Maintaining a reserve of marketable secunities for sale or Repo in need, in line with the FSA "buffer” requirements

Liquidity, or availability of suffictent financral resources, I1s a core component of ABCIB's management framework In order to avoid unnecessary exposure to short-term
funding as a means to mest its cashfiow obligations, ABCIB uses a funding gap management process, maintains a system of hughly liquid supplementary iquidity and
aperates a contingency funding plan

Funding projections are made daily using data compiled by Internal Control Department and reparted to the Treasurer who has responsibility for day-to-day iquidity
management ABCIB's approach to iquidity monitaring involves a limit structure to control iquidity mismatches in particular ime: penods from “next day” through to “over 1
year’” The time bands have specific imits set on the maximum mismatch allowable In the penods “sight to 8 days” and “sight 1o one month” of 0% and -5% respectively
Liquidity mismatches are calculated on the basis of the aggregate across all ABCIB branches of all assets and all liabilities, together with an allowance of 15% of undrawn
commitments

Funding gap control 1s supplemented by other analyses such as stress tests (including using prescribed risks from the FSA iquidity rules) and asset and lability
concentration reports in order to ensure clear and timely communication of the structure and requirements of ABCIB's funding operation ALCO has pnmary responsibility
for monitonng liquidity nsk management

There Is an extensive daily reporting process for iquidity nsk management, including stress tests, detailed deposit matunty information and asset drawdown analyses
Senor management of ABCIB 1s actively involved in assessment and management of the bank's hquidity on a day-to-day basis to ensure that lquidity 18 avalable to
support the business plan at all ymes

Analysis of financlal llabliities by remaining maturitios

The table below summarnses the matunty of ABCIB's financial labiities at 31st December 2012 based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligatons Repayments
which are subject to notice are treated as If notice were to be given iImmediately However, ABCIB expects that many customers will not request repayment on the earlrest
date ABCIB could be required to pay and the table does not reflect the expected cash flows indicated by ABCIB's deposit retention history

2012
Not more More than More than
than 3 months 1 year
3 months but not more but not more
than 1 year than5 years Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Finanglal Liabilities
Deposits from Banks, Customers, Termn borrowing and
subordinated hiabiliies 2,318,334 345,197 215,601 2,879,132
2011
Not more More than More than
than 3 months 1 year
3months butnotmeore  buinct more
than 1 year than5 years Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Deposits frorn Banks, Customers, Term borrowing and 1,812,528 476,250 159,550 2,448,368

Subordinated Liabiittes

37 ABC International Bank pic - Annual Report 2012




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

#7. Croditrisk

Credit nsk 1s the current or prospective nsk o eamings and capital ansing from an obligor's failure to meet the terms of any contract with the institution or ds failure to
perform as agreed Country nsk (cross border o transfer nsk), which is closely related to credit sk, 1 also included as part of credit nsk management Country nsk
encompasses the nsk of loss caused by changes in foreign exchange controls and political or economic situations

The main purpose of credit nisk management 1s to maintain a sound and well-spread portfolio of credit nsk assets, to ensure retums are commensurate with nsk and to
keep credit nsk exposure to a permissible leve! relatve to capital

ABCIB has in place well defined policies and procedures for the identification, measurement and control of credit nsk Embedded within these policies and procedures IS a
framework of management responsibiities  ABCIB s credit management policy compnses clearly stated basic operating concepts, policies and standards

The Board Risk Committee oversees the credit nsk management process The carporate governance framework for credit risk management ensures appropnate controls,
appropnate senior management oversight and thorough nsk analysis and reporting conducted by a credit nsk management team with the capabilities and resources to
evaluate and monitor the exposures and limits

ABCIB assesses the credit nsk posed by each customer using an intemal rating system and quantifies that nsk for control purposes The rating system sets a grading
based on the creditworthiness of the obligor, taking into account financial and non-financial factors A financsal modelling systern 15 used to denve the financial component
of the obligor rating from financial accounts and peer group analysis  The nsk asset portfolio 15 analysed and reviewed on the basis of ratings distrbution  Obligor ratings
are also a key input to ABCIB's risk adjusted return on capital assessment model

The nsk asset portfolio 1s reviewed daily by the Head of Risk Management using a number of different portfolio measures, such as geographical distnbution, ingustry
sector, maturity, nsk rating, product type and large exposures A selection of portfolic reports are also reviewed at every Board Risk Committee meeting

The business model of ABCIB 18 relately straightforward and non-complex The doninant business line 1s Trade Finance, within which transactions tend to be short-term
and routine and market-standard m nature with a low (0ss probability and inherent structural and documentary protections for ABCIB  The dominance of the Trade
Finance business within ABCIB gives a short-term bias to the nsk asset portfolic which means that ABCIB’s exposure to longer-term credit nsk 1s moderate and relatively
easily managed ABCIB does not undertake complex structured transactions and does not provide general working capital finance to borrowers  The nisk asset portfolio 1s
substantially transaction-based or project-related, meaning that ABCIB's exposure to the general weakening of corporate credit nisk covenants 18 modest In addition to the
management of credit nsk, ABCIB holds collateral against a proportion of the exposures in the form of cash bank guarantees and export credit agencies cover

Industry exposure

The table below analyses the industna! spread of certificates of deposits purchased, due from banks, loans and advances to custorners, financial Investments - available-
for-sale and financial investments - held to matunty

2012 2012 2011 2011
£000 % £000 %
Financial institutions 1,791,937 57 4% 1,683,115 62 4%
Manufactunng 440,777 14 1% 380,999 14 4%
Construction 104,547 33% 47,050 18%
Trade 112,577 J6% 21,863 0 8%
Govermnments 221,11 T 1% 4243 02%
Other services 450,297 14 5% 542,038 20 6%
3,121,246 100 0% 2,649,308 100 0%

Country exposure

The table below analyses the geographical spread of certificate of deposits purchased, due from banks, loans and advances to customers, financial Investments -
available-for-sale and financial investments - held to matunty

2012 2012 201 2011

£000 % £000 %

United Kingdom 496,072 158% 327,019 12 3%
Turkey 441101 141% 408 469 15 4%
Germany 365,929 117% 222,088 84%
usa 322,382 103% 426,875 16 1%
France 180,170 58% 170,758 64%
UAE 133,169 43% 80,051 30%
Bahrain 113,482 36% 49,081 19%
Saud Arabia 99,485 3 2% 145,318 5 5%
Algena 88,5604 28% 33,799 13%
Egypt 85,008 27% 107,238 4 0%
Netherlands 62,175 20% 41,887 16%
Belgium 61,968 20% - 00%
Japan 61,853 20% - 0 0%
Switzerland 59,490 19% 45915 1 7%
Italy 37,907 12% 33,919 13%
India 38,603 12% - 00%
Libya 36,990 12% 68,371 26%
Morocco 32,784 11% - 0 0%
Denmark 30,332 10% - 00%
Oman 22,743 or% 26 889 10%
Qatar 21,907 07% - 00%
Austria 19,660 06% 58,305 22%
South Africa 16,088 05% - 00%
Ireland 13,150 04% 27,710 10%
Others 280,314 8 0% 375,813 14 2%
3,121,246 100 0% 2,649,308 100 0%

8
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS {continued)

37, Crodit risk {continued)

Maximum sxposure to tredit risk without taking into account collateral and other credit enhancements

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit nsk for the compenents of the balance sheet, including dernvatives The maximum exposure 18 Shown gross,

before the effect of mitigation through the use of master netting and collateral agreements

Certificates of deposit purchased

Due from banks

Loans and advances to customers
Financial investments - available-for-sale
Other assets

Contingent habilities
Commitments

Collatoral hoid as sscurity

Cash collateral
Loans and advances to customers
Contingent habilities

Banks and Credit Agencies

Due from panks

Loans and advances to customers
Contingent labilities
Commitments

Risk concentration agalnst Individual counterparties
Largest exposure to indrvidual Bank before collateral *
Largest expoesure to individual Bank after coltateral
Largest exposure to indrmdual customer before collateral
Largest exposure to indivdual customer after collateral
Central Bank hquidity Buffer before collateral

Central Bank hquidity Buffer after collateral

* represents balance with a Central Bank

Crodit quallty per class of financlal assets

Due from banks
Investment grade

Sub investment grade
Bosrowers requinng caution
Total

Loans and advances to customers
Investment grade

Sub investment grade

Borrowers requinng caution

Total

Financial investments - available-for-sale
Investment grade

Other Non-Investment grade

Total

Certificates of deposit
Investment grade
Total

39

2012 2011

£000 £000
311,140 120,000
855,140 831,188
1,492,182 1,223,504
362,774 474614
51,565 44,493
3,172,811 2,693,799
1,784,894 1284,219
292,649 203,203
2,077,543 1,487,422
2012 2011

£000 £000
64,052 44,200
831,559 211,799
4,495 8,532
150,836 169,580
223,734 349,779
20,351 28,931
2012 2011

£000 £000
315,379 182,794
16,545 110,701
70,225 80,780
70,225 80,780
249,514 273,348
249,514 273,348

Financial
Loans and  Investments
roceivables avallable- for Total
sale

2012 2012 2012

£000 £000 £000
509,562 - 509,562
445,578 - 445,578
955,140 - 955,140
522,894 - 522,894
948,930 - 948,980
20,318 . 20,318
1,492,192 - 1,492 192
- 353,613 353,613
- 9,161 9,161

- 362,774 362,774
311,140 - 311,140
311,140 - 311,140
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

.

37, Credit riak (continued)
Finanaial
Loans and investments -

Credit quality per class of financial assats recevables available. for- Total
sale
2011 2011 2011
£000 £000 £000
Due from banks
Investment grade 479,935 - 479,935
Sub investment grade 351,253 - 351,253
Borrowers requinng cautron - - -
Total 831,188 - 831,188
Loans and advances to customers
Investment grade 215,663 - 215,063
Sub investment grade 968,607 - 969,607
Borrowers requinng caution 37,934 - 37,934
Total 1,223 504 - 1,223,504
Financial investments - available-for-sale
Investment grade - 463,655 463,655
Other Non-Investment grade - 10,859 10,959
Total - 474 614 474,614
Certificates of deposit
investment grade 120,000 - 120,000
Total 120,000 - 120,000

Borrowers requinng caution 1s an internal grading category which refers to obligors which need to be momtored with special attention primarily due to problemalic or poor
performance

38, Effoctive average Interest rato
The effective average interest rate (effective yield) of a monetary financial instrument is the rate that, when used in a present vatue calculation, results i the carrying
amount of the instrument This rate 1s the stoncal rate for a fixed rate instrument camed at amortised cost and the current market rate for a ficating rate instrument or an
nstrument carmed at far value
The effective average interest rates of ABCIB for vanous products denominated in Pound Sterfing, US Dolar and Euro (major dealing currencies) are as foliows

2012 2011

GBP uspD EUR GBP uso EUR
Due from banks and loans and advances to customers 235% 222% 117% 184% 241% 329%
Financial investments - available-for-sala - 063% 0 44% - 088% 169%
Deposits from banks and other finangial institutions 0 59% 053% 012% 0 90% 049% 108%
Deposits from customers 031% 085% 029% 087% 041% 094%
Term borrowing 012% - 138% 025% 0989% 267%
Curroncy risk

Denvative instruments are used by ABCIB to hedge the nsk of treasury losses ansing out of mismatches in currencies of its asset and liability base Any open positions
are relativety small and are re-valued on a regular basis Trading on the spot and forward foreign exchange markets 1s pnmariy ¢hent dnven
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

2012 2041
10, Dealing profits £000 £000
Dealtng profits are analysed as follows
Foreign exchange gains and losses from financial assets and 183 314
liabiities not at fair vatue through profit and loss
Interest rate products {47} (3}
336 an
40, Agsots, lisbilitles and shareholdere’ funds In forelgn currencles 2012 2011
£000 E£000
Denorminated in sterling 742,096 608,485
Denominated in US dollars 1,513,245 1,686,028
Denorminated in other currencies 1,082,792 524 651
Total assets 3338133 2 820,044
Denomunated in sterling 742,097 608,465
Denominated in US dollars 1,509,812 1,686,028
Denominated in other currencies 1,086,224 524 651
Total llabilitles and shareholders’ funds 3,338,133 2,820,044

ABCIB's balance sheet consists entirely of monetary tems, except for fixed assets totalling £1,052,000, which have been inciuded as part of assets denominated in

Stering

The above summary should not be considered as an indication of ABCIB's exposure to foreign exchange nsk due 1o the existence of compensating forward contracts held

for hedging purposes as disclosed i note 35

41, Ultimate paront undortaking and parent undertakings

The ultimate parent undertaking I1s the Arab Banking Corporation (B § C ) incorporated in the Kingdom of Bahrain Copies of the group accounts of Arab Banking

Corporation (B § C ) may be obtained from Arab Banking Corporation House 1-5 Moorgate, EC2R 6AB

43, Rolatod party transactions

Related parbes represent the ulbmate parent undertaking, major shareholders and entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such parties

The parent undertaking 1s Arab Banking Corporation (8 S C ) incorporated in the Kingdem of Bahrain The ultmate parent undertaking 1s the Central Bank of Libya

The year end balances in respect of related parties included in the financial statements are as follows

Due from banks

Loans and advances to customers

Deposits from banks and other financial institutions
Deposits from customers

Term borrowing

Subordinated ltabilities

The tncome and expenses in respect of related parties in the financial statements are as follows

interest receivable
interest payable

41

2012 2011
£000 £000
86,817 32,851
76,611 75,432
1,654,876 1,473 812
95,188 84,993
58,455 303,082
114,628 107 921
6,611 6,814
17,661 17,299
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

43, Ponsions

ABCIB participates in a contnbutory defined benefit pension scheme known as the ABC International Bank plc UX Retimement Benefits & Life Assurance Scheme ("the
Scheme"), providing benefits based on final pensionable salary The assets of the Scheme are held separately from those of ABCIB and are administered by the Trustees
of the Scheme who include employees of ABCIB The Scheme 1s now closed to new entrants and the cument active members are 48 The Scheme was closed to the
future accrual benefits on 30th September 2010 ANl active members at this date became deferred members All employees are offered memberstip of a defined
contnbution scheme ABCIB expects to contnbute £1,033 750 to the Scheme dunng the year to 31st December 2013

The valuatron has been based on the most recent actuanal valuation carned out as at 30th September 2011, using the projected unit credit actuanal valuation method
The market value of the assets as at 30th September 2011 was sufficient to cover 73% of the then current value of the benefits accrued to that date, representing a gross
Scheme deficit of £98,144,000

The September 2011 valuation was updated by an independent actuary, to take account of the requirements of FRS 17 (using the projected unit method) in order to
assess the labilities of the scheme at 31st December 2012 and 31st December 2011 The actuanes assessed the value of the Scheme's labilihes as at 30th September
2012 on curtaiment Scheme assets are stated at their market values at the respective balance sheet dates

The mam assumptions used by the actuary to assess the value of the liabilites were

2012 2011

% per annum % per annum

Inflatien 290 310
Rate of mcrease in salanes n/a nfa
Rate of increase of inflation inked pensions in payment 290 310
Rate of increase for defemed pensions 250 250
Discount rates 445 4 90

The mortality rate 1s in accordance with Tables of Mortality PNADO with allowance for future tmprovements in line with the CMi 2011model with a long term improvement
rate of 1 25% per annum The discount rate is calculated using the yield on AA- rated corporate bonds of terms greater thary 15 years duration, but making an allowance
for the difference in duration of the corresponding (Boxx Sterling over 15 year index and the duration of the Scheme's liabilites

The farr value of assets and expected rate of return on assets were 2012 2012 2014 2011
Long term Long term
rate of return rate of return
Fair vzlue axpected Farr value expected
£Em % £m %
Total value of assets 2698 51 254 48
Movement In achame deficit 2012 201 2010 2009
£000 £E000 £000 £000
Deficit in the Scheme after tax at 1st January (3,593) (1,200) {7.077) (2,411)
Contnbution paid 915 815 4,250 210
Current service cost . - {513) (445)
Other finance income/ (charge} (188) 15 (350) (733)
Gain on curtaiiment - - 1450 -
Actuanal {losses) gains {3,267y (3,757) 2,342 5014y
Deficlt in the plan at 31st December (6,133} (4,027) 102 (7.693)
Movement in defemed tax asset through STRGL 481 575 (425) 616
Movement in deferred tax asset through profit and loss account {162) _(141) {877} -
Net pension liability at 31st December (5,814) (3,593) {1,200} (7,077}
Amount (debited)/ credited to other financtal charges 2012 2011
£000 £000
Expected return on pension scheme assets 1,258 1,432
Interest on pension scheme liabilities {1,444) {1,417}
{188) 15
Amount recognisad In the Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Actual less expected return on assets (223} (283) 140 701 {2,159)
Expenence gain/ (loss) on liabiites 422 {158) 528 (39) 1,843
Changes in assumptions undertying present value of labilities {3,466) {3,335 1,874 (5,678} 3,889
Actuarial (loss)! gain recognised In the Statement of Total Recognised
Gains and L {3,267) {3,767) 2,342 (5,014) 3,673
% of Bohome assot value at balance shoet date ropresented by 2042 2011 2010 2009 2008
. % % % % %
Actual less expected retum on agsets {0 8) (10 08 39 {11 ¢
% of Bohama liabllity value st balance sheot date represented by 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
% % % % %
Expenence gan/ {I0ss) on habiities 13 (0 5) 21 @n 90
Changes in assumptions undertying present value of labilities (10 3) {112) 67 (21 3) 181
Actuanal (loss)/ gain recognised in the Staternent of 67 (127 94 (18 8) 171

Total Recognised Gains and Losses
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

44, Operating sogmont Information

For management purposes, ABCIB i1s organised into business units based on their products and has four repertable operating segments as follows

Trade Finance
Project and Structured Finance
Treasury

Others including Head COffice & Islamic financial services

Management monitors the operating results of rts business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment

Segment performance ts evaluated based on operating profit and loss account

Transfer pnces between operating segments are on an arm's length basis \n a manner sumitar to transactions with third parties

Year ended 31st December 2012

Profit and loss account
Net interest iIncome

Net fees and commission
Other income

Total operating income

Administrative expenses
Provisions

Profit/ (loss) on ordinary actlvities before tax

Tax charge on ordinary activities
Segment profit/ {loss)
Operating assets

Operating Habilities
Year ended 31st December 2011

Profit and loss account
Nat interest iIncome

Net fees and commission
Other income

Total cperating iIncome

Admunistrative expenses

Provisions
Profit on ordinary activities before tax

Tax charge on ordnary activities
Segment profit/ {loss)
Operating assets

Operatng habtities

Trade

Project

Treasury Cthors Total
Finance Finance
£000 £000 £000¢ £000 £000
20 692 4324 9,313 5184 39,513
26,126 934 (426) 1,733 26,367
735 - {1,636) 305 {596)
47,553 5,258 7,251 7,222 87,284
(17.477) (2,507) {2.186) (18,286) {40,456)
1,358 3 3679 (79) 4,062
31,435 2,754 8,744 (11,143) 31,790
(476 - - (3,580) {4,066)
30,959 2754 8,744 (14,733) 27,724
1,242,151 294 454 366,043 835,485 3,338.433
949,553 45 158 1,753,623 589,899 3,338,133
Trade Project
Finance Finance Treasury Others Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
14,718 4,494 7.309 2,901 29,510
22,251 639 (35) 488 23,353
2 069 10 5,223 10 7,312
39,036 5,143 12,587 3,409 60,175
{18,468) (2.425) {2,022) (14 672) {35,587
_(845) (119) {2,302) (775) (4,041}
21,723 2,599 8,263 {12,038) 20,547
(191) - - (3,048) (3,228)
21,632 2,599 8,263 (15.086) 17,308
1,050,790 342,705 762,503 664,045 2,820,044
611,557 38,222 1,448 562 721,702 2,820,044

Substanhally all of the assets of ABCIB are held in Europe, but many of our customers are based overseas The analysis below are based on the location of the customers

giving nse to the tolal operating income

Tota! Operating Income

MENA
Europe
North and Latin Amenca
Others

2012 2011
£000 £000
20,268 12,534
40,418 35,012
4,006 8,083
2,594 3,666
87,284 60,175
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